
AGENDA AMENDED 7.15.24
Springerville Town Council Chambers - 418 E. Main St. Springerville, AZ 85938

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Springerville
Town Council and to the general public that the Council will hold a meeting open to the public at the
Springerville Town Hall, 418 East Main Street, Springerville, Arizona. The Town Council reserves
the right to adjourn into Executive Session in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes Section 38-
431.03 (A)(1)(3)(4) and (7) for legal consultation on any of the following agenda items.

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING: 6:00 P.M.

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
2. INVOCATION:
3. ROLL CALL:

Members of the Town Council or Legal Counsel that are unable to be present in person at a
scheduled Council meeting, may participate in the meeting by telephone or video conference.

4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:
This portion of the agenda is set aside for the public to address the Council regarding items, whether
they are listed on the agenda for discussion or not. However, the Council cannot engage in
discussion regarding any item that is not officially listed on the agenda for discussion and/or action
(A.R.S. §38-431.02(H).) Comments are limited to a 3 minute time period.

5. COUNCIL, MANAGER AND STAFF REPORTS:
Summary reports will be given on the items listed and no action will be taken on any matters
mentioned in the summary unless listed in the agenda. (A.R.S. 38.431.02(k)

a. Mayor & Council Reports: Summary Updates on committee meetings.
b. Staff Reports: Summary Updates
c. Manager Tim Rasmussen: Summary Updates & presentation(s)

6. CONSENT ITEMS:
a. Consider approval of June 17, 2024 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.
b. Consider approval of the June 26, 2024 Special Council Meeting Minutes.
c. Consider ratification and approval of the accounts payable register from June 11, 2024

through July, 8, 2024.
d. AMENDED 7.15.24 ADDING : RESOLUTION 2024-R004

Consider approval of Resolution 2024-R004,A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF

TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
Wednesday, July 17, 2024 at 6:00 pm



TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE APPROVING THE AMENDMENTS TO THE RURAL ARIZONA 
GROUP HEALTH TRUST AGREEMENT AND DECLARATION OF TRUST DATED JULY 01,
2012.

e. AMENDED 7.15.24 ADDING: IGA NORTHEASTERN ARIZONA LAW ENFORCEMENT
TRAINING ACADEMY
Consider approval of the 2024 IGA with the Northeastern Arizona Law Enforcement Training
Academy and the Round Valley Police Department to provide AZPOST training to students
sponsored by a Law Enforcement agency.

7. PUBLIC HEARING:
a. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPEAL:

Discussion and possible action to enter into a public hearing to take Council and Public
comments on the Conditional Use Permit Appeal. Comments are limited to 3 minutes per
person.

b. FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 2025 BUDGET:
Discussion and possible action to enter into a public hearing to take Council and Public
comments on the proposed fiscal year 24/25 Budget. Comments are limited to 3 minutes per
person.

OLD BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

8. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPEAL:
Discussion and possible action regarding the appeal on the conditional use permit for 64 North D
Street to be utilized as a mobile home park.

9. FISCAL YEAR 24/25 BUDGET:
Discussion and possible action to adopt the Fiscal Year 24/25 budget as presented.

10. TOURISM TAX COMMITTEE FUND REQUEST:
Discussion and possible action regarding the Tourism Tax fund donation request by the Springerville
Eagar Chamber of Commerce for the Artists & Authors Exo.

11. AWARD FOR PESTICIDE SERVICES:
Discussion and possible action regarding the award of pesticide services for Town facilities.

12. MOTOR VEHICLE LEASE: TOWN OF EAGAR
Discussion and possible action regarding the motor vehicle lease with the Town of Eagar for the
KME Firetruck.

13. AUGUST MEETING DATE:
Discussion and possible action to change the August meeting date.



14. ADJOURNMENT:
Submitted by: ___________________________________________

Posted by: _____________________________________________

Members of the public who only want to provide written comments can express their comments by
emailing the Town Clerk at kmiller@springervilleaz.gov to be read or summarized during the call
to the public. All comments must be submitted by 12:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.

Americans with Disabilities Act (A.D.A.): The Town of Springerville intends to comply with A.D.A. If
you are physically challenged or disabled and need special accommodations to participate in this
town meeting, please contact the Town Clerk at (928) 333-2656 ext. 224 forty-eight (48) hours prior
to the meeting to arrange necessary accommodations.

Contact: Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk (kmiller@springervilleaz.gov (928) 333-2656 x 224) | Agenda published on
07/11/2024 at 9:33 AM



 Town Council Agenda Staff Report 
  

COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT REPORT 
July, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
June Community Assistance and Senior Services Counts: 

Senior & Meal Services 

  

Low Income Assistance Services 

Congregate Meals   340 Food Commodity Box (households)    468 

Home Delivered Meals  413 Food Cards      14  

Long Term Care Meals    22 Bus Pass        6 

Indigent Meals     40 Fuel Cards      16 

HEAD START Meals served      0 Utility Assistance      15 

Total Meals Served   815           

Senior Equipment       1 Electric Deposits/Rental Assistance        1 

Transportation Units   179 Appliance Repair/Replace        0 

Volunteer Hours   113 Senior Food Boxes    112 

             
 
 
Nutrition Education Program 

Location Age Group Curriculum # Participants # Classes 

Senior Center Seniors Nut Ed/ Food Demo 22 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Town Council Agenda Staff Report 



 Town Council Agenda Staff Report 



 Town Council Agenda Staff Report 



 Town Council Agenda Staff Report 



 Town Council Agenda Staff Report 

 



 Town Council Agenda Staff Report 
 



  Town Council Agenda Staff Report 
 

Report for June 2024 
 

Springerville Heritage Center & Casa Malpais Archaeological Park 
Community Event Planning 

 
• We did not have any school or large groups in the month of June so the visitor 

count fell slightly.  There were approximately 368 visitors to the museum.   
 

• There were 91 tours of Casa in June with revenue generated in the amount 
of $952.   
 

• I am in the process of ordering the two new large metal inserts for the sign 
in front of the museum with updated information.  The small signs with the 
hours of operation were replaced the end of last year. 

 

• We received approval from our insurance company for inflatable coverage 
for Fall Fest so we are moving forward with planning the event.  We have 5 
food trucks secured for this year’s event as well as 4-5 face painters (which 
are always a huge draw at the event.)  I will be ordering several inflatable 
games to take the place of the Amazon games that have, or are, falling apart 
after two years of use.  The inflatable games should last for many years.   

 

• I will be ordering new large fall banners.  I have already contacted the 
supplier. We will be decorating Main Street with the straw bales, corn stocks 
and flowers this year.  I will be ordering more straw bales so that we can 
decorate further through downtown.  The banners will be placed throughout 
town, as usual. 

 



 



 



 
 
         418 E Main Street                                                                                                      Main (928) 333-4240    
         Springerville, AZ 85938                                                                                      www.springervilleaz.gov 
 

                       

                         Round Valley Police Department 

                                           “Respect for Our Past, Confidence in Our Future.” 

        

                       

                                    Chief Dayson Merrill 
      

  Town Council Agenda Staff Report 
 
 Round Valley Police Department Agenda Items and staff report 

 

  Round Valley Police Department June 2024   
 

Total Incidents                        296                         
Calls for Service                   138 

      Officer Initiated Incidents       158 

             Traffic Stops                     86 

             Other OIA Incidents               72 

   Bus/Building checks                     21   

 

   Total Officer Cases                     56 

          Accident                              5 

          Civil                                 0 

          Crime                                28 

          Death                                0 

 

   Total Misdemeanor & Felony Arrests 21   

      Misdemeanor Arrests                  16 

             Adult                              15 

             Juvenile                           1 

      Felony Arrests                        5 

 Adult                              5 



 
 
         418 E Main Street                                                                                                      Main (928) 333-4240    
         Springerville, AZ 85938                                                                                      www.springervilleaz.gov 
 

 Juvenile   0 

Citations                               26 

      City Code Violation   1 

      Civil - Moving Violation             9 

      Civil - Non-Moving Violation          4 

      Criminal - Moving Violation          3 

      Criminal Violation     9  

      

1. General Information  
 
June 6, Participated in the health screening. 
June 6, PSPRS Training 
June 21, Mat Ryan academy graduation 
Three police Cadent backgrounds completed 
Three academy seats were awarded. 
  
 
 
 
CURRENT SWORN 
Chief Merrill 
Lt. Bevington 
Sgt. Holmes 
Sgt. Gleeson 
Officer Thomas Scruggs 
Officer Sidney Aragon  
Officer Mat Ryan 

RESERVE OFFICERS 

None 

VOLUNTEERS 

Six (5)   

Animal Control  

Michael Fortado 



 
 
         418 E Main Street                                                                                                      Main (928) 333-4240    
         Springerville, AZ 85938                                                                                      www.springervilleaz.gov 
 

HIRING PROCESS UPDATE: 

LATERALS (interviewed and in the process to be hired) 

Currently working on one lateral that has been interviewed and, in the hiring, process. 

RECRUITS  

Scheduled to start the academy  

• Cole Roosma (Entry level) Currently lives in Show Low, AZ. Panel interview, physical 

abilities test and written exam completed, and is moving on to background 

investigations. Scheduled to start the Academy on July 22, 2024  

• Simeon Rivera (Entry level) Panel interview, physical abilities test and written exam 

completed, and is moving on to background investigations. Scheduled to start the 

Academy on July 22, 2024 

• John Rippy (Entry Level) Panel interview, physical abilities test and written exam 

completed, and is moving on to background investigations. Scheduled to start the 

Academy on July 22, 2024 

  

Dayson Merrill 

 Chief of Police 

Round Valley Police Department 

Town of Springerville 

418 E. Main Street  

Springerville, AZ 85938 

dmerrill@springervilleaz.gov 

Office (928) 333-4240 

 
 

 

mailto:dmerrill@springervilleaz.gov


TO:   Springerville Town Council 
FROM:   Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk  
DATE:    07/17/2024 
SUBJECT: Consent Items

 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS:  

 

I move we approve consent items 6a, 6b, 6c, 6d, and 6e as presented.  

 

Or I move we do not approve this item.  

 

Or I move we table this item.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 STAFF REPORT:  

 

See attachments  

TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE 

MEMORANDUM  



Springerville Town Council Chambers - 418 E. Main St. Springerville, AZ
85938

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Springerville
Town Council and to the general public that the Council will hold a meeting open to the public at the
Springerville Town Hall, 418 East Main Street, Springerville, Arizona. The Town Council reserves
the right to adjourn into Executive Session in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes Section 38-
431.03 (A)(1)(3)(4) and (7) for legal consultation on any of the following agenda items.

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING: 6:00 P.M.

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

Minutes:
Mayor Reidhead called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Barry Williams led the pledge of
allegiance.

2. INVOCATION:

Minutes:
Terry Shove offered the invocation.

3. ROLL CALL:

Minutes:
The Town Clerk completed the Roll Call.
Present: Shelly Reidhead, Mayor; Richard Davis, Vice-Mayor; Douglas Henderson, Councilor;
Donald Scott, Councilor; Florencio Lozoya, Councilor
A quorum is present.

4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

Minutes:
Terry Shove reported on the Lava Run Wind and Solar Farm meeting held on the 18th. The
meeting was well attended and interesting. She reported the school has sold the first half of their
bonds. They have a good bond rating. They will be able to access that money on the 1st of July.
The first project will be addressing any safety concerns. They plan to purchase new furniture for
the elementary and high schools. They are hoping to repave the auditorium and elementary school

TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
Minutes

Wednesday, June 19, 2024 at 6:00 pm



parking lots and improve the audio system in the auditorium. She reported that 1st grade will be
moving to the primary school and 5th grade will be moving to the elementary school. Lastly, she
reported on the passing of former Councilor Phelps Wilkins, services will be held on Saturday at
noon.

5. COUNCIL, MANAGER AND STAFF REPORTS:
a. Mayor & Council Reports: Summary Updates on committee meetings.

Minutes:
Councilor Henderson reported on the success of the Aviation Expo. The profits go to the
animal rescue; this was their best year yet. He thanked the Hills for putting on this event
and public works. He also thanked public works for their help with getting a disabled plane
off of the runway.
Councilor Lozoya reported that they have moved first grade and fifth grade back into the
elementary and primary schools.
Mayor Reidhead reported she met with Senator Kelly's people and is asking for their help in
stopping the wind farm project. She is also trying to get our parade route back to normal.
She reported on attending the senior center BBQ.

b. Manager Tim Rasmussen: Summary Updates & presentation(s)

Minutes:
Manager Rasmussen explained it is Kelsi Millers 10 year employment anniversary with the
Town, the Mayor presented her with an appreciation gift. Manager Rasmussen reported that
the Round Valley Fire Department is already gearing up for the 4th of July fireworks and
doing some fire prevention measures. We have been receiving calls from the public
regarding a fire behind Flat Top Mountain. There is no fire there, it is south of Alpine. He
reported on open positions and interviews for the airport will be held on Monday. He
explained what the water model is and that it is 95% completed. He updated that Public
Works is almost done with getting everything ready for auction. He has spoken with the
residents of El Cajon Circle and Hacienda, they have been able to find a solution for the two
garages. Public Works was able to help move one of the sheds on the easements. He has
offered the help of the Town to everyone in that area if it is something we have the
equipment to move. He further explained not only is this necessary for this project but also
when CommNet runs their fiber lines. The town is trying to prevent future problems.

c. Staff Reports: Summary Updates

Minutes:
Stormy Palmer, Planning and Zoning Director reported she has received a rezone
application and will be advertising a public hearing for both Council and the Planning and
Zoning Commission.
Robert Pena, Public Works Director reported that Sandy Rupp has started with the
department and is gearing up for all the work that comes with the new budget season.
Public Works has been very busy but running well.
Lieutenant Bevington reviewed the statistics for the Police Department for the month of
May. These stats included 16 arrests, 9 being a felony and 29 civil citations. He reported



Cadet Ryan will graduate from the police academy on Friday. We will be sending 3 more
cadets to the academy on July 22nd and Officer Aragon will be finishing FTO on Thursday.

6. CONSENT ITEMS:

Minutes:
ACTION: Motioned by Councilor Doug Henderson, seconded by Councilor Don Scott to approve
consent items 6a, 6b, and 6c as presented.
DISCUSSION: None
Vote results:
Ayes: 5 / Nays: 0

a. Consider approval of the May 15, 2024 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.
b. Consider approval of the May 29, 2024 Town Council Work Session minutes.
c. Consider ratification and approval of the accounts payable register April 10, 2024

through June 10, 2024.
7. SERVICE AWARD AND RECOGNITION OF RETIRED FIRE CHEIF SADLER:

Minutes:
PRESENTATION: Former Fire Chief Robert Pena Jr. presented this item to former Fire Chief Max
Sadler of the Springerville Fire Department. The presentation included a formal retirement
recognition and plaque of appreciation to Max Sadler for 38 years of service to the Springerville
Fire Department. Mr. Pena shared stories of Chief Sadlers career including some of the fires,
musters, awards, former employees, and many years of successes. Council and the public
watched a power point presentation with pictures and memories of Mr. Sadlers career. Max
thanked his family, friends, and former staff. He explained he loved what he did and thanked the
Town for the recognition. Leon Hinshaw also spoke and thanked Chief Sadler for his dedication
and mentorship over the years.

NEW BUSINESS

8. 578 N. MAIN STREET:

Minutes:
DISCUSSION: Manager Rasmussen reported that we put 578 North Main Street out for sealed
bids with the Town of Eagar. We received one bid back which was for $155,000. The appraisal
established that the fair market value for this property is $250,000. Eagar sent the bidders a letter
letting them know they did not meet the minimum bid amount. Staff is now asking how the council
would like to proceed.
DIRECTION: Council asked staff to put the building back out for bid and have a sign placed Infront
of it this time.

9. AUTOMATED METER READING EQUIPMENT:

Minutes:
DISCUSSION: Public Works Director, Robert Pena reported that we received two very
competitive sealed bids for the AMR meters, Aquaflow and Fortiline. We worked with the
engineers to review the bids for completeness and both bids were complete. Based on our



evaluation with the engineers we are recommending that the award be made to the lowest
responsive and responsible bidder, Aquaflow Solution, Inc. at the submitted lowest base bid price
of $314,068.21 funded by the WIFA Grant.
ACTION: Motioned by Councilor Doug Henderson, seconded by Councilor Florencio Lozoya to
move forward with awarding this project to Aquaflow Solution, Inc. and authorizing staff to execute
the construction contract.
Vote results:
Ayes: 5 / Nays: 0

10. RESOLUTION 2024-R003: CFO DESIGNATION

Minutes:
ACTION: Motioned by Councilor Don Scott, seconded by Vice-Mayor Richard Davis to approve
Resolution 2024-R003, regarding designating Heidi Wink as the Chief Fiscal Officer for fiscal Year
2025.
DISCUSSION: None
Vote results:
Ayes: 5 / Nays: 0

11. TENTATIVE BUDGET:

Minutes:
ACTION: Motioned by Councilor Doug Henderson, seconded by Vice-Mayor Richard Davis to
adopt the fiscal year 24/25 tentative budget for the Town of Springerville as presented.
DISCUSSION: None
Vote results:
Ayes: 5 / Nays: 0

12. NATIONAL OPIOD SETTLEMENT: KROGER

Minutes:
FIRST ACTION: Motioned by Vice-Mayor Richard Davis, seconded by Councilor Don Scott to
enter into executive session for item 12 at 6:58 p.m.
First Vote results: Ayes: 5 / Nays: 0
Council Convened back into regular session at 7:10 p.m.
SECOND ACTION: Motioned by Councilor Doug Henderson, seconded by Vice-Mayor Richard
Davis to participate and authorize staff to execute the New National Opioid Settlement with
Kroger.
Second Vote results: Ayes: 5 / Nays: 0

13. NOTICE OF COMPLAINT & DEMAND: ROAF

Minutes:
ACTION: Motioned by Vice-Mayor Richard Davis, seconded by Councilor Don Scott to enter into
executive session at 7:11 p.m. for item 13.
Council convened out of executive session and back into regular session at 7:32 p.m.
Vote results:
Ayes: 5 / Nays: 0



14. ADJOURNMENT:

Minutes:
The meeting was adjourned at 7:32 p.m.
 
 
___________________________________________.
Shelly Reidhead, Mayor
ATTEST:
 
___________________________________________.
Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and copy of the minutes of the Springerville Town
Council in a Regular Council Meeting on __________________________. I further certify that the
meeting was duly called and a quorum was present.

                                               Dated this _______ day of ____________, 2024

 
______________________________________________________. Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk

Members of the public who only want to provide written comments can express their comments by
emailing the Town Clerk at kmiller@springervilleaz.gov to be read or summarized during the call
to the public. All comments must be submitted by 12:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.

Americans with Disabilities Act (A.D.A.): The Town of Springerville intends to comply with A.D.A. If
you are physically challenged or disabled and need special accommodations to participate in this
town meeting, please contact the Town Clerk at (928) 333-2656 ext. 224 forty-eight (48) hours prior
to the meeting to arrange necessary accommodations.

Contact: Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk (kmiller@springervilleaz.gov (928) 333-2656 x 224)



Springerville Town Council Chambers - 418 E. Main St. Springerville, AZ
85938

Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Springerville
Town Council and to the general public that the Council will hold a meeting open to the public at the
Springerville Town Hall, 418 East Main Street, Springerville, Arizona. The Town Council reserves
the right to adjourn into Executive Session in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes Section 38-
431.03 (A)(1)(3)(4) and (7) for legal consultation on any of the following agenda items.

TOWN COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING: 6:00 P.M.

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

Minutes:
Mayor Reidhead called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. and led the pledge of allegiance.

2. ROLL CALL:

Minutes:
Present: Shelly Reidhead, Mayor; Richard Davis, Vice-Mayor; Douglas Henderson, Councilor;
Donald Scott, Councilor; Florencio Lozoya, Councilor
A quorum is present.

3. LITTLE COLORADO RIVER ADJUDICATION:
a. EXECUTIVE SESSION:

Minutes:
ACTION: Motioned by Vice-Mayor Richard Davis, seconded by Councilor to enter into
executive session at 6:03 p.m. for item 3.
The council convened out of Executive Session and back into Regular Session at 7:09 p.m.
Vote results:
Ayes: 5 / Nays: 0

b. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO ON THE NORTHEASTERN ARIZONA INDIAN
WATER RIGHT SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT:

Minutes:
ACTION: Motioned by Vice Mayor Richard Davis, seconded by Councilor Don Scott to

TOWN COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING
Minutes

Wednesday, June 26, 2024 at 6:00 pm



approve the Northeastern Arizona Indian Water Rights Settlement Agreement and to
authorize the Mayor, the Clerk, and the Attorney to execute the Agreement upon
satisfaction of the following conditions: 1. Brown & Brown Law Offices is satisfied that
issues related to participation by the United States and the Tribes in the Little Colorado
River Adjudication have been resolved. 2. Brown & Brown Law Offices is satisfied that any
amendments to the Agreement are acceptable. 3. The Exhibits to the Agreement, including
the LCR Judgement and Decree, are acceptable to Brown & Brown Law Offices. 4. Brown
& Brown Law Offices is satisfied that the Congressional Legislation implementing the
Agreement is acceptable.
Vote results:
Ayes: 5 / Nays: 0

4. ADJOURNMENT:

Minutes:
The meeting was adjourned at 7:14 p.m.
___________________________________________.
Shelly Reidhead, Mayor
ATTEST:
___________________________________________.
Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and copy of the minutes of the Springerville Town
Council in a Special Meeting on __________________________. I further certify that the meeting
was duly called and a quorum was present.

                                           Dated this _______ day of ____________, 2024

______________________________________________________. Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk

Members of the public who only want to provide written comments can express their comments by
emailing the Town Clerk at kmiller@springervilleaz.gov to be read if their is a call to the public. All
comments must be submitted by 5:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.

Americans with Disabilities Act (A.D.A.): The Town of Springerville intends to comply with A.D.A. If
you are physically challenged or disabled and need special accommodations to participate in this
town meeting, please contact the Town Clerk at (928) 333-2656 ext. 224 forty-eight (48) hours prior
to the meeting to arrange necessary accommodations.

Contact: Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk (kmiller@springervilleaz.gov (928) 333-2656 x 224) | Minutes published on
07/02/2024 at 4:42 PM





































APPROVALS 
 

I voted in favor of the following amendment to the Rural Arizona Group Health 
Trust Declaration of Trust Agreement at the February 23, 2024 Trust Meeting: 
 

Removal of location of Principal Office  

 
 

Entity: Town of Carefree 
 

   By:   Gary Neiss    

      
   Title:   Town Administrator 
 
   Date:   May 22, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
         



APPROVALS 
 
I voted in favor of the following amendment to the Rural Arizona Group Health 
Trust Declaration of Trust Agreement at the February 23, 2024 Trust Meeting: 
 

Removal of location of Principal Office  

 
 

Entity: Desert View Schools 
 

   By:  
 
   Title: Chief Operations Officer/Trustee/Chairman 
 
   Date: 05/14/2024 
 
 
 
 
 
         



APPROVALS 
 

I voted in favor of the following amendment to the Rural Arizona Group Health 
Trust Declaration of Trust Agreement at the February 23, 2024 Trust Meeting: 
 

Removal of location of Principal Office  

 
 

Entity: Town of Eagar 
 

   By:  
 
   Title: Town Clerk  
 
   Date: 5/15/2024 
 
 
 
 
 
         























APPROVALS 
 
I voted in favor of the following amendment to the Rural Arizona Group Health 
Trust Declaration of Trust Agreement at the February 23, 2024 Trust Meeting: 
 

Removal of location of Principal Office  

 
 

Entity: Town of Taylor 
 

   By:  
 
   Title: Town Manager 
 
   Date: 5/22/24 
 
 
 
 
 
         



APPROVALS 
 
I voted in favor of the following amendment to the Rural Arizona Group Health 
Trust Declaration of Trust Agreement at the February 23, 2024 Trust Meeting: 
 

Removal of location of Principal Office  

 
 

Entity: Town of Wellton 
 

   By:   Sandra Jones  

 
 
   Title:   Deputy Town Clerk 
 
   Date:   5/22/2024 
 
 
 
 
 
         





APPROVALS 
 

I voted in favor of the following amendment to the Rural Arizona Group Health 
Trust Declaration of Trust Agreement at the February 23, 2024 Trust Meeting: 
 

Removal of location of Principal Office  

 
 

Entity: City of Winslow 

   By:    
 
   Title:   City Manager 
 
   Date:   05/14/2024 
 
 
 
 
 
         



PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE DECLARATION OF TRUST 
Rural Arizona Group Health Trust 

 This document sets forth a proposal to amend the Rural Arizona Group Health Trust 
(“RAGHT”) Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust (“Trust Agreement”) as to the Principal 
Office location. 

 The following sets forth the specific proposed amendments to the Trust Agreement, new 
language added in capital letters and in bold, deleted language lined through, and a statement 
explaining the purpose and effect of these amendments. 

 

I. PROPOSED TRUST AGREEMENT AMENDMENT: 

  Current Language: 

Article II.  Purpose of Trust and Application of the Fund. 

…  

2.02 Principal Office. The Principal Office of the Trust shall be the office of Erin 
P. Collins & Associates, Inc., located in the City of Kingman, County of Mohave, 
State of Arizona (herein after designated and referred to as the Principal Office). 
[Deleted] 

 

Article IV. Powers and Duties OF Trustees. 

4.17 Fiscal Year End Audit. 

4.17 Fiscal Year and Audit. The accounting year of the Fund shall be on a fiscal year 
basis. The initial fiscal year shall commence on July 01, 2002, and end on the 30th day 
of June 2003. Subsequent fiscal years shall commence on July 1 and end on the 30th 
day of June of the following year. Any report required by city, county State or Federal 
law, or the respective subdivisions thereof, shall be made by the Trustees. The Trustees 
shall have an annual audit and accounting of the Trust Fund by an independent 
Certified Public Accountant in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
practices, at the end of each fiscal year. The Accountant shall certify the accuracy of 
the audit and accounting. The Trustees shall also obtain an appropriate actuarial 
evaluation of the claim reserves of the pool, including an estimate of the incurred but 
not reported claims. A statement of the results of each audit shall be available for 
inspection by authorized persons at the principal office of the Trust BY 
CONTACTING THE CURRENT TRUST ADMINISTRATOR. Copies of the 
audit and generalized statements of the accounting and reports shall be delivered to 
each Trustee, to the governing body or chief executive officer of each Participating 
Entity, and to the director of the Arizona Department of Insurance or as otherwise 



required. Copies of the audit shall be retained by the Board of Trustees for a period of 
at least five (5) years. 

 

II. STATEMENT EXPLAINING THE PURPOSE AND EFFECT OF THE 
AMENDMENT 

A. Purpose of the Amendment.  The purpose of the proposed Amendments is to 
address the fact that the Trust does not have a Principal Office and that the best 
way to obtain documents is to contact the Trust Administrator, currently 
Gallagher Benefit Services. 

B. Effect of the Amendment. The effect of the Amendment will be to delete the 
reference to a Principal Office, which does not exist, but to still inform where 
the documents for the Trust may be obtained. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rural Arizona Group Health Trust 
(RAGHT) 

 
AMENDED AND RESTATED DECLARATION  

OF TRUST 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Effective: 
July 01, 2002 

Amended: 
July 01, 2005 
July 01, 2007 
July 01, 2012 

 



TABLE OF CONTENTS  
Article Title                 Page(s) 
 
I.  Definitions            1  
 

II.  Purpose of Trust and Application of the Fund       2 
 

III.  Board of Trustees           3 
 

IV.  Powers and Duties of Trustees         3   
 

V.  Payments to the Fund           8 
 

VI.  Payment of Benefits            9  
 

VII.  Controversies and Disputes         10  
 

VIII.  Responsibilities and Liabilities        11 
 

IX.  Amendment of the Trust Agreement        12 
 

X.  Non-Vesting of Rights      12 
  

XI.  Provisions Relating to Insurance Companies    13 
 

XII.  Program Administration      13 
 

XIII.  Additional Members        14 
  

XIV.  Duration of Agreement        15 
 

XV.  Voluntary Termination of Membership        15 
 

XVI.  Suspension and Expulsion        16 
 

XVII.  Termination of Trust           17 
 

XVIII. Distributions of Surpluses and Deficits Upon Termination of      17 
 the Trust, Voluntary Termination of Membership or Expulsion 
  

XIX. Miscellaneous              19 
 

XX. Stop-Loss           21 
 

XXI. Loss Control Program                21 
 

XXII. Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information by    21 
Participating Entities 

 
 
Exhibit A           25 
Approvals          



 
 1 

This Amended and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust (hereinafter referred to as 
“Trust Agreement” or “Agreement”), by and between The Participating Entities for the 
administration of the Trust in accordance with the terms and provisions of this Trust Agreement is 
made and entered into effective July 1, 2012. 

 
RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, A.R.S. § 11-952.01 provides a vehicle through which public agencies in the State of 
Arizona may come together to cooperatively provide for the provision of certain employee benefits; 
and 
 
WHEREAS,  The Participating Entities desire to enter into an agreement to provide and maintain a 
program of health and welfare benefits for the Employees of the Participating Entities and to certain 
other persons deemed eligible for coverage hereunder; and  
 
WHEREAS,  To effect the aforesaid purpose, it is mutually beneficial to the parties hereto to declare 
and create a Trust which establishes a Trust Fund for and in the manner more particularly set forth 
herein; and  
 
WHEREAS,   The Participating Entities which accept this Agreement and Declaration of Trust and 
agree to be bound by the provisions hereof shall, upon acceptance by the Trustees, be deemed parties 
to this Agreement and Declaration of Trust. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED AS FOLLOWS:  
 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS 
 
1.01 "Beneficiary" shall mean Employees, their dependents and such other persons designated by 
the Participating Entities as eligible for coverage provided herein under and approved by the 
Trustees. 
 

1.02 "Benefits Administrator" shall mean the person(s) or firm employed by the Trustees who is 
responsible for processing of claims and payment of benefits, and related services. 
 

1.03 "Employee" shall mean any person employed by a Participating Entity on a regular basis 
working not less than the number of hours per week required by the Participating Entity for 
eligibility, and who are not eligible for benefits under any other Health and Welfare program to 
which the Participating Entity makes contributions. 
 

1.04 "Employee Benefit Program" shall mean the program of benefits to be established by the 
Trustees pursuant to the authority granted to them in this Trust Agreement and as set forth in the 
applicable Summary Plan Description. 
 

1.05 "Employee Contributions" shall mean any contributions made by Beneficiaries whether 
comprising part of the Entity Premium or whether made directly to the Fund in order to obtain 



 
 2 

coverage by the Employee Benefit Program. 
 

1.06 "Employer Contributions" shall mean the contributions made by Participating Entities 
comprising all or part of the Entity Premium. 
 
1.07 "Entity Premium" shall mean the total charges paid by each Participating Entity to the Fund 
for the Employee Benefit Program, and shall be comprised of the sum of Employer Contributions 
and Employee Contributions. 
 
1.08 "Fund" shall mean the Trust Fund created by this instrument, and shall mean generally, the 
monies, property, contracts or things of value, tangible or intangible, received and held by the 
Trustees for the uses and purposes of the Trust set forth therein, and those things of value which 
comprise the corpus and additions to the Fund. 
 
1.09 The Name of this Trust is and shall be the Rural Arizona Group Health Trust. 
 
1.10 "Participating Entities" shall mean those entities listed in Exhibit A which is attached hereto 
and incorporated by reference herein, and such additional Participating Entities as may be approved 
for membership by the Board of Trustees pursuant to Article XIII of this Agreement and Declaration 
of Trust.  
 
1.11 “Summary Plan Description”  (SPD) shall mean the document which generally describes 
health and welfare benefits to be provided by the Trust to the Beneficiaries. 
 
1.12 "Trust Agreement" shall mean this Agreement and Declaration of Trust and any modifications 
or amendments thereto. 
 
1.13 "Trustees" shall mean the Trustees and their successors as provided for in this Trust 
Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE II.   PURPOSE OF TRUST AND APPLICATION OF THE FUND 
 
2.01 Creation of Trust Fund.  There is hereby declared and created the Rural Arizona Group Health 
Trust to provide benefits for the Beneficiaries of the Trust.  Such benefits  may include, but are not 
limited to those described under Article 4.05 of this Agreement and Declaration of Trust whether 
through one or a combination of self-funded or insured programs. 
 
2.02  Principal Office.  The Principal Office of the Trust shall be the office of Erin P. Collins & 
Associates, Inc. located in the City of Kingman, County of Mohave, State of Arizona (hereinafter 
designated and referred to as the Principal Office).  



 
 3 

ARTICLE III.  BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
3.01  Trustees.  The Employee Benefit Program shall be operated and administered by the Board of 
Trustees for the benefit of the Beneficiaries.  The Trustees shall be selected by the Participating 
Entities as provided herein and may resign or be removed at any time by their respective 
Participating Entities. Trustees must be employees of the Participating Entity. 
 
3.02 Membership and Appointment.  .  The Board of Trustees shall be comprised of one Trustee 
appointed by each Participating Entity. Each Participating Entity shall make or rescind appointments 
as necessary to comply with the requirements of this Section. The appointing Participating Entity 
may remove a Trustee at any time without cause.  In the event of the death, removal or resignation of 
a Trustee, the appointing Participating Entity shall designate a successor Trustee.  Upon acceptance 
of his/her appointment in writing, the successor shall succeed to the legal interest of his/her 
predecessor and have the same powers and duties.  Participating Entities may appoint alternate 
Trustees to vote on behalf of an absent Trustee.  Participating Entities shall submit written notice of 
appointment or rescission of appointment of a Trustee or alternate Trustee to the Trust.  
 
3.03 Votes.  If the number of Participating Entities does not exceed two (2), each Participating Entity 
shall  be entitled to cast two (2) votes in matters requiring a vote by the Board of Trustees.  In the 
event that the number of Participating Entities exceeds two (2), each Participating Entity shall  be 
entitled to cast one (1) vote. 
   

3.04 Terms of Office.   Following appointment, Trustees shall serve until such time as they are 
removed, resign or cease to be employees of the Participating Entity that they were designated to 
represent.  In the event that a Trustee is removed, resigns or ceases to be an employee of the 
designating Participating Entity, the position shall be deemed vacant and a new Trustee shall be 
designated by that Participating Entity.   
 
 

3.05 Executive Committee.  In the event that the number of Participating Entities exceeds seven (7) 
the Board of Trustees may, by a 2/3 vote, elect to designate an Executive Committee who shall 
exercise such powers and duties as may be provided in the Bylaws of the Trust.  The Executive 
Committee shall consist of the Chairperson and at least two other Trustees selected by majority vote 
of the Board.  The Term of the elected members of the Executive Committee shall be one year.  
Vacancies on the Executive Committee shall be filled by majority vote of the Board. 
 

ARTICLE IV.  POWERS AND DUTIES OF TRUSTEES 
 

4.01  Appointment of Trustees.  The Trust shall be administered by the Board of Trustees who shall 
be selected and shall serve as provided in Article III. 
 

4.02  Trustees' Acceptance.  The Trustees named in the preceding Section, by their signatures to 
this Trust Agreement, hereby accept the Trust and Trusteeship and declare that they will receive and 
hold the Fund by virtue of this Trust Agreement for the uses and purposes and with the powers and 
duties herein set forth and none other. Trustees shall faithfully keep and hold any and all monies they 



 
 4 

receive as Trustees for the purposes of the Trust and keep adequate and proper records thereof. 
 
4.03  Duties of Trustees. The Trustees shall:  

(a)  hold, manage, care for and keep the Fund for the benefit of the Beneficiaries and collect 
the income and increments thereof, and shall keep and maintain adequate and proper records to 
render an annual audit, accounting and reports as hereinafter mentioned.  
 

(b)  employ or hire such agents, attorneys, accountants, actuaries, auditors, engineers, private 
consultants, advisors, employees or other persons and shall purchase, lease or rent real or personal 
property as may be necessary or desirable in administering  the Fund and carrying out its purposes.  
Agreements for such expenditures shall be in writing and formally approved by the Trustees. Fees, 
salaries, wages, emoluments or compensation of any and all such persons and other such expenses 
shall be paid from the Fund.  When acting upon advice of counsel for the Trust, the Trustees shall be 
relieved of all responsibility for acts performed or not performed except for their own gross 
negligence, bad faith or willful misconduct.   
 

(c)  pay any and all taxes of whatever nature the Fund is, or may be, obligated to pay and 
incur any expenses for supplies, rental of space, or other items, or anything else determined to be 
necessary or desirable in administering the Fund and carrying out the objects and purposes of this 
Trust and Trust Agreement.  
 

(d)  establish terms and conditions of coverage within the Summary Plan Description 
including the exclusions of coverage.  
 

(e)  ensure that all valid claims are paid promptly. 
 

(f)  take all necessary precautions to safeguard the assets of  the Trust. 
 
4.04 Authority of Trustees.  In carrying out the purposes of the Trust Agreement, the Trustees shall 
have all right, power and authority to: 
 

(a) enter into contracts, procure insurance policies, or provide such benefits through 
self-funding, and to place into effect and maintain the desired schedule of benefits.  
 

(b)  provide the  intended benefits under this Trust by means of self-funding by the Trust 
and/or by the procurement of group insurance contracts (as permitted by the laws of the State of 
Arizona) including group insurance contracts issued to and in the name of the Trust, together with 
such other forms of contracts issued by qualified insurance companies authorized to do business in 
the State of Arizona as may be selected by the Trustees for the purpose of providing for all or part of 
the benefits provided for under this Trust. The Trustees are hereby expressly authorized to pay to any 
insurance company as may be selected by the Trustees the required insurance premiums in 
connection with such group insurance contracts issued to the Trust. Whether or not benefits are 
provided by means of self-funding or by the procurement of group insurance, such decision shall be 



 
 5 

at the sole and exclusive discretion of the Trustees.  
 

(c)  do all those things which, in the opinion of the Trustees, may be necessary or desirable 
for the administration, and operation of and accomplishment of the objectives and purposes of the 
Fund and this Trust and Trust Agreement. 
 

4.05  Selection of Benefits.  The Trustees may, subject to their discretion and the continuing right to 
change, obtain for the Beneficiaries of the Trust forms of employee benefits which include, but are 
not limited to, the following: 
 

(a)  Accidental and sickness weekly indemnity 
(b)  Long and short-term disability 
(c)  Accidental death and dismemberment 
(d)  Dental benefits 
(e)  Vision benefits 
(f)  Life insurance 
(g) Hospital, surgical, professional, in-patient, out-patient, prescription drug and other group 
medical products customarily made available to employee groups. 
(h) Employee wellness programs, employee assistance programs, utilization review 
programs, claims management programs and other programs intended to improve employee 
health, reduce costs to the Trust and Beneficiaries and otherwise manage losses. 

           

4.06  Deposits and Investments.  All corpus or portions of the Fund not expended pursuant to this 
Article IV may be deposited by the Trustees in the name of the Trust in such depository or 
depositories as the Trustees shall from time to time select, and any such deposit or deposits should 
bear interest.  The Trustees are empowered to receive for the benefit of the Fund such interest as 
might accrue on the above deposits. 
 
  (a)  If not so deposited, any accumulated funds not currently required for the purposes of this 
Trust shall be invested by the Trustees in reasonably secure, reasonably liquid investments and in a 
manner consistent with applicable Arizona law pertaining to investment of public funds. 
 

(b)  The Trustees may accumulate dividends, experience rating refunds or other monies, if 
any, accruing from any insurance policy or policies, deposits or investments. Such dividends, refunds 
or other monies, or all of them, shall be held in the Fund, applied to the payment of self-funded 
claims, the payment of insurance premiums or held, used or applied as herein set forth. 
 

(c)  The Trustees may enter into financial services agreements with banks and other financial 
institutions and may authorize the Trust to issue checks in its own name as required to further the 
purposes and objectives of the Trust. 
 

4.07  Trustees’ Expense Reimbursement.  The Trustees may receive reimbursement for actual 
reasonable expenses incurred in carrying out their duties pursuant to the Trust Agreement. 
 
4.08  Trustees’ Compensation.  The Trustees shall not receive compensation for services rendered 
pursuant to the Trust Agreement. 



 
 6 

 

4.09  Presumption  of Validity.  No person dealing with the Trustees shall be obligated to see to the 
application of any monies or property of the Fund, or to see that the terms of this Trust Agreement 
have been complied with or to inquire as to the necessity or expediency of any act by the Trustees. 
Every instrument executed by the Trustees shall be conclusive in favor of every person who in good 
faith relies upon it that:  
 

(a)  at the time of the delivery of the instrument, this Trust Agreement was in full force and 
effect; 

(b) the instrument was executed in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Trust 
Agreement; and  

(c)  the Trustees were duly authorized to execute the instrument or direct its execution. 
 

4.10  Withdrawals.  All checks, drafts, vouchers or other withdrawals from the fund or depositories 
and the transfer or liquidating of insurance policies or investments shall be signed by appropriate 
signatures as determined by the Board of Trustees. All such withdrawals shall be reviewed and 
approved by majority vote of the Board of Trustees 
 

4.11  Administrative Disputes.  In the event of any dispute between the Trustees and the Benefits 
Administrator or any other parties providing services to the Trust over exercise of powers granted 
herein, the Trustees' interpretation shall prevail and the service organization shall have no liability to 
any person with respect to the disputed act or omission in the event that it gives written notice of its 
dissent from such act or omission to each Trustee and to the Participating Entities. 
 

4.12  Selection of Officers and Recording Secretary.  The Trustees shall elect from among 
themselves at their first meeting, and annually thereafter,  the following officers:  Chairperson, Vice 
Chairperson and Treasurer who shall serve as officers of the Trust.  The Trustees shall further 
designate annually a Recording Secretary, who need not be a Trustee. The powers and duties of the 
officers shall be specified herein or in the Bylaws. 
 
4.13  Trustees' Meetings.  The Trustees shall hold an initial Board meeting as soon as practical after 
being appointed. The Trustees shall determine the time and place of the regular meetings which  
shall be held at least quarterly.  Special meetings may be called by the Chairperson or by a majority 
of the Trustees.  Minutes of all meetings shall be taken.  Meetings shall be conducted in accordance 
with applicable  provisions of A.R.S. § 38-431 et seq. and the Bylaws.  Written notice designating 
the time and place of an annual, regular or special meeting shall be given to the Trustees as required 
by applicable open meeting laws.  Notice and agendas of meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be 
made and posted as provided in the Arizona Open Meeting Law, A.R.S. § 38-431 et seq., as 
amended from time to time, and any successor statute.  In the event of an emergency, a special 
meeting may be held with such lesser notice as may be appropriate and otherwise permissible by law. 
 Any meeting at which all Trustees are present, in person or concerning which all Trustees have 
waived notice in writing, shall be a valid meeting without requirement that notice be given to the 
Trustees. 
 
4.14  Quorum Requirement.  To constitute a quorum at any regular or special meeting of the 



 
 7 

Trustees, there must be present in person or by telephonic or other electronic means Trustees or 
Alternate Trustees from at least a majority of the Participating Entities. 
 
4.15 Location of Meetings.  All meetings of the Trustees shall be held at such location or locations 
as designated from time to time by the Trustees. 
 

4.16  Successor Trustees.  The Trustees and their successors, from time to time acting hereunder, 
shall have all the rights, powers and duties of the initial Trustees, named herein.  
 

4.17  Fiscal Year and Audit.  The accounting year of the Fund shall be on a fiscal year basis.  The 
initial fiscal year shall commence on July 01, 2002 and end on the 30th day of June, 2003.  
Subsequent fiscal years shall commence on July 1 and end on the 30th day of June of the following 
year.  Any report required by city, county State or Federal law, or the respective subdivisions thereof, 
shall be made by the Trustees.  The Trustees shall have an annual audit and accounting of the Trust 
Fund by an independent Certified Public Accountant in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting practices, at the end of each fiscal year.  The Accountant shall certify to the accuracy of 
the audit and accounting.  The Trustees shall also obtain an appropriate actuarial evaluation of the 
claim reserves of the pool, including an estimate of the incurred but not reported claims.  A statement 
of the results of each audit shall be available for inspection by authorized persons at the principal 
office of the Trust.  Copies of the audit and generalized statements of the accounting and reports 
shall be delivered to each Trustee, to the governing body or chief executive officer of each 
Participating Entity, and to the director of the Arizona Department of Insurance or as otherwise 
required.  Copies of the audit shall be retained by the Board of Trustees for a period of at least five 
(5) years. 
 
4.18  Bylaws, Rules and Regulations.  The Trustees shall have the power to adopt bylaws, rules, 
procedures  and regulations pertaining to the purpose, powers and administration  of the Trust, which 
shall be consistent with covenants, terms, conditions and duties as set forth in the Trust Agreement. 
Such bylaws, rules, procedures and regulations shall be binding on all persons dealing with the Fund 
and upon any and all persons claiming any benefits there under.  Adoption or amendment of bylaws, 
rules, procedures or regulations shall require a majority vote of the Board of Trustees. 
 
4.19  Bonding Requirements.  The Trustees shall procure fidelity bonds for the Trust and/or 
persons authorized to receive, handle, deal with or draw upon the monies in the Fund for any purpose 
whatsoever, said bonds to be in such amount to reasonably aid in reimbursing bondable loss of 
money, and to meet the requirements as may be required, from time to time of applicable United 
States or State law.  Such bonds are to be obtained from such reputable fidelity  or surety companies 
as the Trustees shall determine.  If convenient, and in conformity with the law, such bonds may be 
position bonds.  The cost of the premiums on such bonds shall be paid out of the corpus or income of 
the Fund.  If any fidelity or surety company refuses to bond or write a bond for any Trustee, or other 
person described in this section, said Trustee or person shall not serve and shall resign. 
 

ARTICLE V.  PAYMENTS  TO THE FUND 
 

5.01  Entity Premiums.  In order to effectuate the purposes of the Trust, each Participating Entity  



 
 8 

shall contribute to the Fund an amount determined by the Trustees to be necessary to pay for the 
benefits provided hereunder to the Employees and other persons covered by the Employee Benefit 
Program.  The Entity Premium shall be due and payable as of the date specified in the Bylaws. The 
Entity Premium shall not include amounts payable directly by persons  receiving extended coverage 
under the Employee Benefit Program as required by law or otherwise. 
 

5.02  Interest on Premiums in Arrears.  Entity Premiums not paid as of the due date as provided in 
Section 5.01 shall  be subject to the late payment process as outlined in the Past Due Contributions 
section of the Bylaws.  
 
5.03  Employer Contributions Not Wages.  Employer Contributions paid or accrued to the Fund 
through Entity Premiums shall not constitute or be deemed wages due employees, nor shall such 
contributions in any manner be liable for or subject to the debts, contracts or liabilities of the 
Participating Entity; neither the Participating Entity, any Employee, nor any Beneficiary under the 
Plan shall have any rights, title or interest in the Fund, except as specifically provided in this Trust 
Agreement. 
 
5.04  Employee Contributions.  Employees may be required to contribute a portion of the Entity 
Premium  in amounts to be determined by each Participating Entity as appropriate for the benefits to 
be provided hereunder. Nothing in this paragraph shall be deemed to preclude a Participating Entity 
from making all or any portion of Employee Contribution payments on behalf of its Employees. 
 
5.05  Payment in Lieu of Benefits.  No Employee shall have any right to receive any part of his/her 
own Employee Contributions or any part of Employer Contributions paid in lieu of benefits. 
 
5.06  Payroll Deductions.  All  Employee Contributions  shall be paid by payroll deductions.   The 
Participating Entity shall remit all monies obtained through payroll deductions in a lump sum to the 
Fund as part of the Entity Premium described herein. 
 
5.07  Manner of Payment.  All Entity Premiums and other payments to the Fund shall be payable to 
the name of the Trust and shall be paid in the manner and form determined by the Trustees. 
 
5.08  Wage Reports/Audits. Each Participating Entity shall provide or make availalble all reports 
required by the Trustees.  The Trustees may at any time have an audit of the Participating Entity's 
wage records performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant or other qualified individual 
or organization as determined by the Trustees to confirm the accuracy of required reports and to 
confirm the correct levels of contributions. 
 
5.09  Contributions Irrevocable. Subject to the provisions of Article XVII with respect to 
termination of this Trust Agreement and Article XV with respect to termination of membership in 
the Trust, all Contributions to the Fund shall be irrevocable and under no circumstances shall any 
monies properly paid into the Fund, or any part of the Fund, be recoverable by or payable to a 
Participating Entity or any Beneficiary, nor shall any of the same be used for or diverted to purposes 
other than for the exclusive program of benefits for Employees and other covered persons as 



 
 9 

provided in this Trust Agreement. 
 
5.10  Assessments.  In the event a deficit shall develop which is creditable to any plan or fiscal 
year, the Trustees shall order an assessment sufficient to cure the deficit.  Assessments shall be 
distributed among the Participating Entities on a pro-rata basis, as calculated by the amount of each 
Participating Entity’s contributions for the plan or fiscal year to which the deficit is credited.  
Assessments shall not exceed the amount of the Participating Entity’s annual contribution to the 
Fund for the year to which the deficit is credited. 
 

ARTICLE VI.  PAYMENT OF BENEFITS 
 

6.01  Benefits Liability. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Trust Agreement, the 
Summary Plan Description and other procedures, rules, regulations and conditions established by the 
Trustees, the Trust shall pay all claims for which each  Participating Entity's Beneficiaries would be 
liable and  would be entitled to receive benefits under the Employee Benefit Program.  
 

6.02  Discharge of Liability.  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Trust Agreement, 
the Summary Plan Descriptions and other procedures, rules, regulations and conditions established 
by the Trustees, liabilities incurred for claims for services rendered to the Beneficiaries of 
Participating Entities under the Employee Benefit Program will be relieved only by payment of 
claims by the Trust, by the Beneficiary, or by such other party who may be deemed responsible for 
payment of such claims. 
 

6.03  Method of Payment.  The Trustees shall arrange for disbursement of benefits under the 
Employee Benefit Trust through a Benefits Administrator appointed by the Trustees. 
 
6.04 Summary Plan Description.  The Benefits to be provided pursuant to the Trust Agreement, 
whether by self-funding or by insurance contract, shall be set forth in a Summary Plan Description 
which shall, at a minimum, generally explain the eligibility rules for coverage for Beneficiaries of the 
applicable Participating Entity. 
 

6.05  Protection of Employees or Other Beneficiaries.  Prior to payment to or on behalf of an 
Employee or other Beneficiary, all assets of the Trust shall be owned by the Trust and shall not be 
liable in any way for any debt or obligation of any Employee or the Trust. To the extent permitted by 
law, all Trust benefits shall be exempt from attachment, garnishment, and levy of execution, 
bankruptcy proceedings, or other legal process at any time subject to the Trustee's possession and 
control; but in any event, such assets shall be subject to such process only to the extent of such 
Employee's benefits hereunder as they come due. 
 

6.06  Employee or Other Beneficiary Claims to Benefits. No Employee or other Beneficiary shall 
have any right or claim to benefits under the Employee Benefit Plan except as specified in the 
Summary Plan Description, policy or policies or contract or contracts procured or entered into 
pursuant to Articles II and IV. Any disputes as to eligibility, time, amount, or duration of benefits 
shall be resolved by the appropriate insurance carrier or Benefits Administrator, under and pursuant 
to the Summary Plan Description, policy or policies, or contract or contracts; and the Employee or 



 
 10 

other beneficiary shall not have any right or claim in respect thereto against the Fund or Trustees.  
Any dispute as to eligibility, type, amount, time or duration of benefits provided by the Fund, as 
self-funded, shall be decided by the Trustees, and all disputes shall be finally settled pursuant to 
Article VII. 
 

6.07  Maintenance of Reserves.  The Trust shall maintain claim reserves in an amount at least equal 
to known incurred losses and reasonable estimates of claims incurred but not reported.  
 

6.08  Failure to Pay Benefits.  Neither the Participating Entity nor the Trustees shall be liable for 
the failure or omission, for any reason, to pay any benefits under the Employee Benefit Plan.  If for 
any reason, including, but not limited to, epidemics, catastrophes, or normal depletion, the Trustees 
determine that self-insured funds are insufficient to pay the current claims, the amount of benefits 
payable to an eligible Employee or other Beneficiary shall, in all events, be limited to the extent that 
sufficient funds are available to the Trustees for the payment of all such claims; and, in such event, 
benefit payments to each eligible Employee or other Beneficiary shall be limited to the extent that 
sufficient funds are available from the Trust Fund, and shall be further prorated in such amounts that 
all such claims shall be treated proportionally equal to the ratio that such total claims bear to the 
funds that are available for such payment.  If any controversy or dispute exists concerning such 
matters, they shall be settled in accordance with the provisions of Article VII. 
 

ARTICLE VII.  CONTROVERSIES AND  DISPUTES 

7.01  Interpretation of Trust Documents.  The Trustees shall have the power to construe, interpret 
and apply the provisions of this Trust Agreement and any amendments, rules or regulations adopted 
pursuant to this Trust Agreement as well as the terms used herein and any construction, interpretation 
or application adopted in good faith.  Should the Trustees in good faith reach a decision in a 
particular circumstance which is or appears to be at odds with the terms of this Trust Agreement, 
such decision shall not have as its purpose of effect to in any other way modify the plan of benefits or 
this Trust Agreement or to obligate the Trustees to take the same or similar action on any matter then 
pending or which might come before them at a future date. 
 

7.02  Settlement of Benefit Claims.   The Trustees may, in their sole discretion, compromise or 
settle any disputed benefits claim controversy in such manner as they deem appropriate and 
consistent with applicable law and regulation and in accordance with the appeal procedure set forth 
in the then current and applicable Summary Plan Description.  All decisions made by the Trustees 
shall be conclusive and binding upon all parties.  
 

ARTICLE VIII.  RESPONSIBILITIES AND LIABILITIES 
 
8.01  Responsibilities and Liabilities of Trustees.  The Trustees shall only be responsible for 
monies when and if said monies are received in accordance with the provisions of this Trust 
Agreement.  Should the Trustees select or provide for any policy or program of self-funding, no 
claims for benefits or claims for liabilities shall be brought against the Trustees.  The sole and 
exclusive liability of said Trustees in the management and operation of any program of self-funding 
shall be limited to due care in the selection of administrators, claims representatives, actuaries or 



 
 11 

other officials charged with the administration of such a program of self-funding.  The Trustees shall 
only be responsible for any liability arising from their respective gross negligence, bad faith or 
willful misconduct in handling of the monies received in hand by them for execution and 
administration of the terms of the Fund.  The Trustees shall not be responsible for the actions or 
omissions of their Co-Trustees or successors, nor for the acts or omissions of other agents, or for any 
of the acts or omissions of any insurance company or its agents, servants or representatives, 
including but not limited to non-payment of claims by an insurance company or companies for any 
reason.  No Trustee or Successor Trustee shall be entitled to any indemnifications of court costs or 
attorneys’ fees from any liability arising from his/her own willful misconduct, bad faith or gross 
negligence.  To the extent that their actions do not constitute willful misconduct, bad faith or gross 
negligence, Trustees shall not be liable for actions taken on advice of counsel for the Trust as 
provided in Section 4.03. 
 
8.02  Successors' Liability.  No successor Trustee shall be liable or responsible for any acts or 
defaults of his/her predecessor, or for any losses or expenses resulting from or occasioned by acts or 
omissions prior to his/her appointment as Trustee, nor shall he/she be required to inquire into or take 
any notice of the prior administration of the Fund or Trust.  A Successor Trustee is responsible  
solely for his/her actions as set forth in Section 8.01 herein.  
 

ARTICLE  IX.  AMENDMENT OF THE TRUST AGREEMENT 
 

9.01  Powers.  It is anticipated that in the administration of this Trust, conditions may arise that are 
not foreseen at the time of execution of this Trust Agreement and it is the intention of the  
Participating Entities, Trustees and each and every party to this Trust Agreement, that the power of 
amendment which is herein granted be exercised in order to carry out the spirit, object and purposes 
of this Trust.  Therefore, the general power is granted by all parties to this Trust Agreement to the 
Trustees to amend this Trust Agreement in accordance with the procedures set forth herein.  All 
parties to the Trust and all persons claiming any interest hereunder are and shall be bound thereby. 
 

9.02 Procedures. Prior to amendment of this Trust Agreement, the Trustees shall notify each 
Participating Entity and Trustee no less than 30 days prior to the date on which such proposed 
amendments are to be considered by the Board of Trustees.  Such notice shall set forth in detail the 
nature of the proposed amendments and shall invite questions or comments.  Amendments to the 
Trust Agreement shall require a 2/3  vote of the Board of Trustees.  Approved amendments shall be 
signed by each Trustee voting in favor of approval.  Amended or new Trust Agreements shall be 
filed with the State of Arizona in the manner provided by law for such agreements.  Proposed 
amendments to the Trust Agreement shall be reviewed and approved in writing as to form by counsel 
for the Trust prior to approval by the Board of Trustees.  Following approval by the Board of 
Trustees, proposed amendments shall be submitted to the governing bodies of the Participating 
Entities and shall become effective after approval by no less than 2/3 of the total number of 
Participating Entities.  Upon approval of a proposed amendment by the requisite number of 
governing bodies as provided herein, a Participating Entity whose governing body fails to approve 
the proposed amendment may elect to terminate its membership in the Trust pursuant to the 
provisions of Article XV of the Trust Agreement.   



 
 12 

ARTICLE X.  NON-VESTING OF RIGHTS 
 

10.01  Rights Not Vested.  No Employee, family, dependents, Beneficiary nor any other person or 
group nor their respective successors, assigns, nor legal representatives, shall have any right, title or 
interest, vested or otherwise, in or to the Fund, Trust, corpus (income or increments thereto), 
insurance dividends, cash value, if any, or any insurance or benefits or monies payable there from, 
payments from the Fund, or in or to the eligibility requirements for benefits as changed or altered.  
Any Beneficiary who withdraws or ceases to participate in the Employee Benefit Program does 
hereby and shall expressly waive and forfeit any right, title or interest in and to the Fund, it corpus 
and assets.  No Employee, family, dependents, Beneficiaries nor any other person or group nor their 
respective successors,  assigns nor legal representatives shall have any right in or to the Trust Fund, 
corpus, insurance dividends, cash value, if any, of insurance, interest, income, benefits, or any 
benefits or money payable there from, or anything arising out of or in this Trust during the term of 
this Trust Agreement and any benefit he or they may have is forever terminated and discharged upon 
the Employee's termination of employment with the Participating Entity (quitting, discharge or 
otherwise), or when this Trust Agreement is terminated, wound up or dissolved.  No benefit, right or 
interest, in any of the forgoing is transferable by the Employee to another Employee or person, 
corporate or otherwise except to physicians, hospitals and any other person or institution furnishing 
medical services within the terms of this Trust Agreement.  No monies, property or equity of 
whatsoever nature, in the Fund, nor insurance policies or benefits or monies payable  there from, nor 
investments, nor deposits nor any part or portion of the Fund, shall be subject in any manner by any 
Employee or Beneficiary, or person claiming through such Employee or Beneficiary, ownership, 
anticipation, alienation, sale, transfer, assignment, pledge, encumbrance, garnishment, attachment, 
execution, mortgage lien or charge of whatsoever nature or kind and any attempt to cause the same is 
and shall be null and void. 
 

ARTICLE XI.  PROVISIONS RELATING TO INSURANCE COMPANIES 
 
11.01  Status of Insurance Companies.   No insurance company which may issue any policies or 
contracts for the purpose of fulfilling the terms of the Trust Agreement shall be deemed to be a party 
to this Agreement, nor shall it be responsible for the validity of this Trust Agreement, nor is this 
Agreement in any manner for the benefit of any insurance company or companies.  No insurance 
company is a third party beneficiary to the Trust Agreement.  No insurance company shall be 
required to look into the terms of this Trust Agreement or to question the authority of or action of the 
Trustees, or be responsible to verify that any action of the Trustees is authorized by the terms of this 
Trust Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE XII.  PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION  
                         
12.01  Allocation of Administrative Duties.  The Trustees shall have the full obligation and 
responsibility for administration of the Employee Benefit Program, but may designate any person, 
firm, corporation or other entity as an employee, agent or representative, for purposes  carrying out 
the objectives of the Trust. The Trustees shall designate an administrator to carry out the policies 
established by the Trustees and to provide day to day management.  An administrator appointed 



 
 13 

pursuant to Section 12.03 may also serve in this capacity.   
 
12.02  Termination of Agents.  The Trustees may remove any agent for administration at any time, 
without cause, after thirty (30) days written notice to the agent or as otherwise  provided in contracts 
for employment of such agents. 
 

12.03  Consultant/Administrator.  The Trustees shall designate a risk management consultant or 
insurance administrator.  The designated consultant or administrator shall be licensed pursuant to 
Arizona Revised Statutes Title 20,  Chapter 2, Articles 3  or 9.  Such licensing shall be verified by 
the Trustees prior to any appointment pursuant to this section. 
 

12.04 Duties of Agents.  Agents shall perform all designated duties in a workmanlike and 
professional manner and shall keep accurate and complete records of activities as prescribed by the 
Trustees.  Any agent designated as benefits administrator shall, in addition to the other duties set 
forth in this section, keep its records open for examination at reasonable times during business hours 
by any person authorized by the Board of Trustees and shall, within sixty (60) days after the end of 
each Trust year or such other date as determined by the Trustees, file with the Trustees a complete 
statement of  its administration  covering the period since the closing date of the previous statement. 
 
12.05  Business Offices.  The Trust may establish offices within the State of Arizona as required for 
the conduct of business and may employ necessary staff to carry out the purposes of the Trust. 
 

ARTICLE XIII.  ADDITIONAL MEMBERS 
 
13. 01  Eligibility for Membership.  Any “Public Agency” as defined in A.R.S. § 11-951 is eligible 
to be considered for membership in the Trust subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein. 
 
13.02  Application for Membership.  An entity desiring membership in the Trust may petition the 
Trustees for permission to become a Participating Entity.  Applicants shall submit application  forms 
as prescribed by the Trustees and shall provide such additional information  as may be requested in 
order to fully evaluate the application. Completed applications and supporting data shall be 
submitted no later than the deadlines established by the Trustees.  Applications deemed incomplete 
by the established deadlines may be rejected in the sole discretion of the Trustees. 
 
13.03  Approval of Applications.  Completed applications  will be reviewed  and evaluated based 
on standards acceptable to the Trustees to ensure that  approvals of applications are based on the best 
interests of the Trust, its Participating Entities and their Beneficiaries.  Decisions of the Trustees may 
be based upon recommendations of their Employees or agents.  The Trustees, in a regularly 
convened meeting may, by two-thirds vote,  approve the application for membership subject to such 
terms and conditions as may be established by the Trustees in their sole discretion.  Decisions of the 
Trustees with respect to membership applications will be final.  If accepted for membership, an entity 
will be bound by all applicable terms and conditions of this Trust Agreement and Declaration of 
Trust as well as all policies, procedures and regulations established pursuant to this Trust Agreement. 
Representatives of Participating Entities approved for membership may attend meetings of the Board 
of Trustees, but will not be allowed to vote or otherwise formally participate in the governance or 



 
 14 

benefits of the Trust until the date on which the Entity’s Beneficiaries become eligible to receive 
benefits under the Employee Benefit Program.  
 

ARTICLE XIV.  DURATION OF AGREEMENT 
 
14.01  Term of Agreement.   This Amended and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust shall 
continue in full force and effect until terminated in accordance with the procedures set forth in 
Article XVII of this Trust Agreement. 
 
14.02  Initial and Renewal Participation Requirements.  The initial membership term for new 
members shall be for a period of not less than thirty five (35) nor more than forty-seven (47) 
calendar months, to the extent permitted by law if monies are appropriated. Membership in the 
Trust  may not be terminated by any Participating Entity during the initial membership term 
except as expressly provided herein.  Notwithstanding these limitations on voluntary termination, 
coverage under the Employee Benefit Plan may be suspended or terminated as provided herein 
for nonpayment of Entity Premiums or other violations of the terms of this Agreement and 
Declaration of Trust.  After expiration of the initial membership term, a Participating Entity may 
terminate its participation as provided in Article XV herein or may request that the Board of 
Trustees approve an additional Renewal Term.  Renewal terms may be for thirty six (36), forty 
eight (48) or sixty (60) months, with the duration of the Renewal Term to be selected by the 
Participating Entity.  Approval of Renewal Terms requires a 2/3 vote of the Board of Trustees.  
Membership in the Trust may not be voluntarily terminated during Renewal Terms except as 
expressly provided herein.   

 
ARTICLE XV.  VOLUNTARY TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP 

 

15.01 Procedure.    Membership in the Trust may be terminated by a Participating Entity after 
completion of the Initial or Renewal Participation Term subject to the following conditions: 
 

(a)  Written notice of termination must be received no later than ninety (90) days prior to the 
end of the Initial or current Renewal Participation Term, at the end of which the termination is to be 
effective. 
 

(b)  Once termination is effective, a former Participating Entity may not be eligible for 
readmission to the Trust for a minimum of three (3) fiscal years.  Application for readmission shall 
be made according to the procedures set forth in Article XIII. 
 

(c)  Termination will not relieve a former Participating Entity of any obligations, financial or 
otherwise, imposed upon Participating Entities pursuant to this Agreement and Declaration of Trust 
for the period during which the former Participating Entity was a member of the Trust. 

 
(d) Participating Entities terminating their membership in the Trust in accordance with 

this Article shall receive surplus amounts due them and shall remain liable for deficits owed by 
them to the Trust in accordance with Article 18.02 of this Agreement. 
 
 



 
 15 

15.02. Termination Due to Amendment of the Trust Agreement.  Notwithstanding the provisions 
of Article 15.01, a Participating Entity may elect to terminate its membership prior to the end of their 
Initial Term of Participation or their then applicable Renewal Term under the following conditions 
and as long as they give such notice as least ninety (90) days before the effective date of the 
termination: 

 
(a) The governing board of the Participating Entity wishing to terminate its membership 

pursuant to this Article must have failed to approve a proposed amendment to the Trust 
Agreement which was approved by the requisite number of governing boards of 
Participating Entities pursuant to Article 9.02 of the Trust Agreement. 

 
(b) The approved amendment to the Trust Agreement is to become effective prior to the 

end of the current Renewal Term. 
 

(c) The proposed date of termination of membership is to be on or before the effective date 
of the approved amendment to the Trust Agreement or upon such later date as may be 
approved by the Board of Trustees during which period the terminating entity shall not 
be subject to the provisions of the approved amendment to the Trust Agreement. 

 
(d) Any termination pursuant to this Article 15.02 shall also be subject to the provisions of 

Article 15.01(b). 
 
(e) Participating Entities terminating their membership in the Trust in accordance with this 

Article shall receive surplus amounts due them and shall remain liable for deficits owed 
by them to the Trust in accordance with Article 18.02. 

 

ARTICLE XVI.  SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION 
 

16.01 Suspension.  In the event that any Participating Entity shall fail to make its contributions as 
specified herein, or shall fail to comply with any other terms or conditions of this Trust Agreement or 
other requirements established by the Trustees, the Board of Trustees may suspend benefits provided 
to the Beneficiaries of that Participating Entity.  Prior to any suspension, the Board shall provide 
written notice of default to the Entity.  The notice of default shall advise the Entity that: 
 

(a)  Unless the default is cured within ten (10) working days of receipt of the notice, coverage 
may be suspended for a period of up to ninety (90) days without further notice or administrative 
process. 
 

(b)  During the ninety (90) day suspension period, the Board of Trustees shall determine if the 
Entity should be terminated as a Participating Entity effective at any time before, or on completion 
of, the ninety (90) day suspension period. 
 

(c)  That, prior to removal of any suspension, the Trustees may impose specific conditions for 
reinstatement of coverage and continued membership in the Trust. 
 

(d)  That the entity will be liable for unpaid premiums and/or benefit payments, 



 
 16 

administrative costs and other costs incurred by the Trust between the date that premium payments 
became in arrears and the date of suspension/termination of benefits plus interest accrued as provided 
in Section 5.02. 
 

16.02 Expulsion.  Participating Entities that are expelled from membership in accordance with this 
Article shall receive surplus amounts due them and shall remain liable for deficits owed by them to 
the Trust in accordance with Article 18.03 of this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE XVII.  TERMINATION OF TRUST 
 
17.01  Termination by the Trustees.  The Trust created by this Agreement and Declaration of Trust 
may be terminated at any time by formal resolution approved by majority vote of the Board of 
Trustees. 
 
17.02  Notice of Termination.   Upon termination of the Trust as provided herein, the Trustees shall 
forthwith notify all Beneficiaries and all other necessary parties.  
 
17.03  Duration After Termination.  Notwithstanding any provision set forth in this Trust 
Agreement regarding duration and termination of the Trust, the Trust shall continue in existence for 
as long a period as may be required to wind up its business.  Upon termination, the Trustees shall 
continue in their capacity as Trustees for so long a period as may be required to wind up the business 
of the Trust. 
 
17.04 Disposition of Trust Assets and Final Accounting. Upon termination of this Trust, any and 
all monies remaining in the Fund shall be disposed of in accordance with Article 18.01. At such time 
as the business of the Trust is wound up, the Trustees shall render a final accounting of the affairs of 
the Trust to the Participating Entities and their Beneficiaries.  Thereafter, there shall be no claim or 
action against the Trustees except as expressly provided herein and they shall have no further 
responsibility or duties and they shall be discharged. 
 

ARTICLE XVIII. DISTRIBUTIONS OF SURPLUSED AND DEFICITS UPON 
TERMINATION OF THE TRUST, VOLUNTARY TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP 

OR EXPULSION 
 
18.01 Upon Termination of the Trust. Upon termination of the Trust, the Trustees shall by 
majority vote provide for the development of a plan (the termination plan) to wind up the Trust’s 
business over the course of a period not to exceed thirty six (36) calendar months from the effective 
date of the Trust’s termination, subject to regulatory approval.   The termination plan shall provide 
for at least the following: 
 

(a) Payment of all administrative and other costs reasonably required to wind up the Trust’s 
operations; 

(b) Payment of all outstanding claims liabilities of the Trust including, without limitation, all 
known claims and incurred but not reported liabilities; 



 
 17 

(c) Payment to the Trust of any deficits owed to it by any current or former Participating 
Entities; and 

(d) Payment of any outstanding amounts due to former Participating Entities that have 
previously voluntarily terminated their memberships in the Trust in accordance with 
Articles 15.01 or 15.02.  

 
18.02 Upon Voluntary Termination of Membership. For entities voluntarily terminating 
membership as provided under Article 15.01 or 15.02, surpluses and deficits allocated to the 
Participating Entity during the term of its membership, including adjustments for administrative 
expenses associated with the termination, shall be paid in accordance with the following schedule: 
 

(a) Surpluses payable to the former Participating Entity shall be paid in two (2) installments, 
with the first installment comprised of an amount not to exceed seventy five percent (75) 
percent of the total estimated amount due being paid no later than one hundred eighty 
(180) calendar days after the effective date of such termination, and any remaining 
surplus balances due being paid not later than twenty seven (27) months after the 
effective date of such termination, or in accordance with such other schedule as may be 
agreed to between the former Participating Entity and the Trustees. 

 
(b) Deficits payable to the Trust from the former Participating Entity shall be paid in two (2) 

installments, with the first installment comprised of an amount not to exceed seventy 
five percent (75) percent of the total estimated amount due being paid no later than one 
hundred eighty (180) calendar days after the effective date of such termination and any 
remaining deficit balances due being paid not later than twenty seven (27) months after 
the effective date of such termination, or in accordance with such other schedule as may 
be agreed to between the former Participating Entity and the Trustees. 

 
18.03 Upon Expulsion. In the event that a Participating Entity is expelled and membership 
involuntarily terminated in accordance with Article 16.02, surpluses and deficits allocated to the 
Participating Entity during the term of its membership, including adjustments for administrative 
expenses associated with the termination, shall be paid in accordance with the following schedule: 
 

(a) Former Participating Entities shall remain liable for the full amount of contributions that 
would otherwise have been due to the Trust during the period of time between the date of 
such Entity’s expulsion and the scheduled end of such Entity’s Initial or Renewal Term 
of Participation. Amounts due to the Trust under this Article may be collected through 
reduction of any surpluses otherwise due to the former Participating Entity in accordance 
with Article 18.03 (b) or, in the event the former Participating Entity has no surplus due 
to it, or that the amount due to the Trust under this Article exceeds the amount of surplus 
due to the former Participating Entity, through assessment in accordance with Article 
18.03(c). 

 
(b) Surpluses payable to former Participating Entities that were expelled in accordance with 

Article XVI shall be reduced by the amount of the Member Contributions that would 



 
 18 

otherwise have been due to the Trust during the period of time between the date of such 
Entity’s expulsion and the scheduled end of such Entity’s Initial or Renewal Term of 
Participation.   The balance of any remaining surpluses due to the former Participating 
Entity after making such adjustment shall be paid in two (2) installments, with the first 
installment comprised of an amount not to exceed seventy five percent (75) percent of the 
remaining total estimated amount due being paid no later than one hundred eighty (180) 
calendar days after the effective date of such expulsion, and any remaining surplus 
balances due being paid not later than twenty seven (27) months after the effective date 
of such expulsion, or in accordance with such other schedule as may be agreed to 
between the former Participating Entity and the Trustees. 

 
(c) Deficits payable to the Trust from an expelled former Participating Entity shall be paid in 

two (2) installments, with the first installment comprised of an amount not to exceed 
seventy five percent (75) percent of the total estimated amount due being paid no later 
than one hundred eighty (180) calendar days after the effective date of such termination 
and any remaining deficit balances due being paid not later than twenty seven (27) months 
after the effective date of such termination, or in accordance with such other schedule as 
may be agreed to between the former Participating Entity and the Trustees. 

 
ARTICLE  XIX.   MISCELLANEOUS 

 
19.01  Prosecution and Defense of Lawsuits.  In the event any claim, suit, action or legal or 
administrative proceeding is brought against the Trust, Board of Trustees, one or more Trustees or 
the Fund, in connection with any matter arising out of the administration of the Trust or Fund or in 
connection with this Trust Agreement or in connection with any act or omission of the Board of 
Trustees or one or more of the Trustees, or in the event of any suit, action or proceeding commenced 
by the Trustees, including, but not limited to, a request for a judicial settlement of accounts, a suit for 
construction, a bill of interpleader, or any other matter relating to the Trust, the Trustees shall have 
the power and authority to employ counsel to represent them in any such suit, action or proceeding.  
Expenses, including counsel fees and other costs shall be paid from the Fund as long as the Trustees 
have acted in good faith and not with gross negligence, bad faith or willful misconduct, it being the 
intent to indemnify the Trustees against all honest mistakes in judgment and all acts or omissions 
that are not grossly negligent, deliberate or willful violations of the duties of the Trustees.  In 
addition, the Trustees shall have the right to commence and prosecute such suits, actions or 
proceedings as they may determine are necessary and proper in order to protect the interests of the 
Trust and Fund, and, in this connection, the Trustees shall have the same rights and entitlement to 
reimbursement for costs and expenses as heretofore described for the defense of lawsuits. 
 
19.02  Fiduciary Liability.  The fiduciary liability and funding of all eligible benefits as determined 
by the Summary Plan Description shall be the sole responsibility of the Trustees.  
 
19.03  Worker's Compensation.  The insurance coverage contemplated by this Trust Agreement 
shall not apply in any case which is compensable under Worker's Compensation. 
 



 
 19 

19.04 Sites of Fund.  The office of Erin P. Collins & Associates, Inc.,  Kingman, County of 
Mohave, State of Arizona, shall be deemed the sites of the Fund created hereunder. All questions 
pertaining to validity, construction and administration shall be determined in accordance with the 
laws of such State and County.  This Trust Agreement is deemed made, executed and delivered in 
such State. 
 
19.05 Interpretation of Trust Agreement.   Whenever any words are used in this Trust Agreement  
in the masculine gender, they shall be construed as though they were also in the feminine or neuter 
gender in all situations where they would so apply, and wherever any words are used in this Trust 
Agreement in the singular form, they shall also be construed as though they were also used in the 
plural form in all situations where they would so apply, and whenever any words are used in this 
Agreement in the plural form they shall be construed as though they were also in the singular form in 
all situations where they would so apply. 
 
19.06  Captions.  It is understood and agreed that the captions and headings contained in this Trust 
Agreement are included for convenience only and that they are not and shall not be deemed a part of 
the Agreement and that they shall in no way define, limit or expand any of the terms, obligations or 
conditions set forth herein. 
 
19.07  Severability.  The parties agree that, to the extent that any provision of this Trust Agreement 
is in conflict with any applicable statute, regulation or rule, that provision shall be deemed 
unenforceable and the applicable statute, regulation or rule shall govern.  Should any provision or 
term in this Trust Agreement be deemed or held to be unlawful or invalid for any reason, such 
determination will not adversely affect the remaining provisions contained herein unless such 
determination will make the operation of the Trust impossible or impractical.  In such a case, the 
appropriate parties shall immediately adopt such provisions as may be required to facilitate to proper 
functioning of the Trust. 
 
19.08   Taxation of Contributions, Assets, Income and Benefits.  This Trust Agreement is being 
entered into and contributions are being made based upon the expectation that contributions made 
hereunder will not be subject to taxation and that benefits received by Employees or other 
Beneficiaries will not be deemed compensation in determination of federal, state or local tax liability. 
The parties hereto, individually and collectively agree to take or cause to be taken any and all steps 
that may be necessary or advisable in order to obtain and/or maintain a tax-exempt status for this 
Trust.  In the event that any provisions of this Trust Agreement are determined to impose tax 
obligations on the Trust or Employees or other Beneficiaries,  any steps necessary to eliminate such 
obligations shall be taken immediately.  Nothing in this section shall be deemed to impose liability 
on the Trustees, the Trust or the Participating Entities in the event that contributions or benefits are 
deemed taxable or in the event that investment income received by the Trust is determined to be 
subject to taxation. 
 
19.09  Cancellation.  This Trust Agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. Section 
38-511. 
 



 
 20 

19.10  Effective Date.  This Trust Agreement shall be effective as of the date set forth herein. 
19.11  Recording.  This Trust Agreement shall be filed in accordance with all applicable Federal, 
State and Local laws and regulations. 

 
ARTICLE XX.  STOP LOSS PROVISIONS 

 
20.01  Stop Loss Requirement.  Specific stop-loss reinsurance shall be an integral part of any 
self-funded medical benefit program established pursuant to this Trust Agreement.  It is the intent of 
the parties to this Trust Agreement that stop-loss coverage, with such attachment points and policy 
limits as may be deemed necessary to protect the loss fund and allow complete and timely payment 
of benefits, be provided by an authorized carrier licensed to execute such contracts in the  State of 
Arizona.  Specific stop-loss limits shall be an integral part of any other self-funded program 
established pursuant to the Trust Agreement, with such dollars limits as may be necessary to protect 
the loss fund and allow complete and timely payment of benefits. 
 

ARTICLE XXI.  LOSS CONTROL PROGRAM 
 
21.01  Loss Control Program.  The Trustees shall provide for the development and implementation 
of a program of loss control for each plan year of Trust operations.  The loss control program shall be 
further described in the Plan of Risk Management approved each year and may include one or 
combinations of: 
 

(a) Specific and/or aggregate reinsurance 
(b) Conventional insurance, partial or full self-insurance with appropriate stop-loss 

payment limits 
(c) Access to preferred Provider organizations (PPO's) for benefit offerings 
(d) Medical pre-certification, concurrent and/or post discharge review 
(e) Large case management 
(f) Health and wellness promotion 
(g) Employee assistance programs 
(h)  Such other loss control programs as the Trustees may determine to be appropriate. 

 
ARTICLE XXII.  USE AND DISCLOSURE OF PROTECTED HEALTH 

INFORMATION BY PARTICIPATING ENTITIES 
 

22.01  The Participating Entities in the Rural Arizona Group Health Trust health and welfare benefits 
plan shall only use protected health information (PHI) to the extent of and in accordance with the 
uses and disclosures permitted by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 
(HIPAA).  Specifically, the Participating Entities may use and disclose PHI for purposes related to 
health care treatment, payment for health care and health care operations. 

 
22.02  Payment includes activities undertaken by the Participating Entities to obtain individually or 
through the Benefits Administrator premiums or determine or fulfill its responsibility for coverage 
and provision of plan benefits that relate to a Beneficiary to whom health care is provided.  These 



 
 21 

activities include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
(a)  determination of eligibility, coverage and cost sharing amounts (for example, cost of a 

benefit, plan maximums and copayments as determined for an individual's claim); 
 
 (b)  adjudication of health benefit claims (including appeals and other payment disputes); 
 
 (c)  subrogation of health benefit claims; 
 
 (d)  establishing Employee Contributions; 
 
 (e) risk adjusting amounts due based on enrollee health status and demographic 
characteristics; 
 
 (f)  billing, collection activities and related health care data processing; 
 
 (g) claims management and related health care data processing, including auditing payments, 
investigating and resolving payment disputes and responding to Beneficiary inquiries about 
payments; 
 
 (h)  obtaining payment under a contract for reinsurance (including stop-loss and excess of 
loss insurance); 
 
 (i)  medical necessity reviews or reviews of appropriateness of care or justification of 
charges; 
 
 (j)  utilization review, including precertification, preauthorization, concurrent review and 
retrospective review; 
 
 (k)  disclosure to consumer reporting agencies related to the collection of premiums or 
reimbursement (the following PHI may be disclosed for payment purposes: name and address, date 
of birth, Social Security number, payment history, account number and name and address of the 
provider and/or health plan); and 
 
 (l)  reimbursement to the Trust. 
 
22.03  Health Care Operations include, but are not limited to, the following activities: 
 
 (a)  quality assessment; 
 
 (b)  population-based activities relating to improving health or reducing health care costs, 
protocol development, case management and care coordination, disease management, contacting 
health care providers and patients with information about treatment alternatives and related 
functions; 



 
 22 

 
 (c)  rating provider and plan performance, including accreditation, certification, licensing or 
credentialing activities; 
 
 (d)  underwriting, premium rating and other activities relating to the creation, renewal or 
replacement of a contract of health insurance or health benefits, and ceding, securing or placing a 
contract for reinsurance of risk relating to health care claims (including stop-loss insurance and 
excess of loss insurance); 
 
 (e)  conducting or arranging for medical review, legal services and auditing functions, 
including fraud and abuse detection and compliance programs; 
 
 (f)  business planning and development, such as conducting cost-management and planning-
related analyses related to managing and operating the Trust, including formulary development and 
administration, development or improvement of payment methods or coverage policies; 
 
 (g)  business management and general administrative activities of the Trust, including, but 
not limited to: 
 
  (i) management activities relating to the implementation of and compliance with 
HIPAA's administrative simplification requirements, or 
 
  (ii)  customer service, including the provision of data analyses for Employees, the 
Trust or other Beneficiaries; 
 
 (h)   resolution of internal grievances; and 
 
22.04  The Participating Entity agrees to: 
 
 (a)  not use or further disclose PHI other than as permitted or required by the Summary Plan 
Description or as required by law; 
 
 (b)  ensure than any agents, including a subcontractor to whom the Participating Entity 
provides PHI received from the Plan agree to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to the 
Participating Entity with respect to PHI; 
 
 (c)  not use or disclose PHI for employment-related actions and decisions unless authorized 
by a Beneficiary; 
 
 (d)  not use or disclose PHI in connection with any other benefit or employee benefit plan of 
the Participating Entity unless authorized by a Beneficiary; 
 
 (e)  report to the Trust any PHI use or disclosure that is inconsistent with the uses or 
disclosures provided for of which it becomes aware; 



 
 23 

 
 (f)  make PHI available to a Beneficiary in accordance with HIPAA's access requirements; 
 
 (g)  make PHI available for amendment and incorporate any amendments to PHI in 
accordance with HIPAA; 
 
 (h)  make available the information required to provide an accounting of disclosure; 
 
 (i)  make internal practices, books and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI 
received from Plan available to the HHS Secretary for the purposes of determining the Trust's 
compliance with HIPAA; and 
 
 (j)  if feasible, return or destroy all PHI received from the Trust that the Participating Entity 
still maintains in any form, and retain no copies of such PHI when no longer needed for the purpose 
for which disclosure was made (or if return or destruction is not feasible, limit further uses and 
disclosures to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible). 
 
22.05  In accordance with HIPAA, only the following employees or classes of employees of a 
Participating Entity may be given access to PHI: 
 
 (a)  the human resources director or the individual assigned by the governing body of  a 
Participating Entity to perform said function; and 
 
 (b)  staff designated by the person assigned pursuant to Article 22.05(a). 
 
22.06  The persons described in Article 22.05 may only have access to and use and disclose PHI for 
plan administration functions that the Trust performs for the Participating Entity. 
 
22.07  If the persons described in Article 22.05 do not comply with the Summary Plan Description, 
the Trust may provide a mechanism for resolving issues on noncompliance, including disciplinary 
sanctions. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 24 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Participating Entities - Rural Arizona Group Health Trust as authorized and approved by the 
RAGHT Board of Trustees effective July 01, 2002: 
 

Participating Entity    Membership Term 
1. City of Holbrook    July 01, 2002 - June 30, 2019 
2. City of Winslow    July 01, 2002 - June 30, 2017 
3. Town of Parker    July 01, 2002 - June 30, 2016 
 

Participating Entities - Rural Arizona Group Health Trust as authorized and approved by the 
RAGHT Board of Trustees effective July 01, 2003: 
 

Participating Entity    Membership Term 
1. Kingman Academy of Learning  July 01, 2003 - June 30, 2019 
2. City of Safford    July 01, 2003 – June 30, 2018 
 

Participating Entity - Rural Arizona Group Health Trust as authorized and approved by the RAGHT 
Board of Trustees effective January 01, 2005: 
 

Participating Entity    Membership Term 
1. City of Page     January 01, 2005 – June 30, 2017  
 

Participating Entity - Rural Arizona Group Health Trust as authorized and approved by the RAGHT 
Board of Trustees effective October 01, 2005: 
 

Participating Entity    Membership Term 
1. Town of Eagar     October 01, 2005 – June 30, 2019  
 

Participating Entity - Rural Arizona Group Health Trust as authorized and approved by the RAGHT 
Board of Trustees effective October 01, 2005: 
 

Participating Entity    Membership Term 
1. Town of Miami    June 01, 2006 - June 30, 2018  
 

Participating Entity - Rural Arizona Group Health Trust as authorized and approved by the RAGHT 
Board of Trustees effective October 01, 2005: 
 

Participating Entity    Membership Term 
1. Town of Springerville    July 01, 2009 - June 30, 2017 
 

Participating Entity - Rural Arizona Group Health Trust as authorized and approved by the RAGHT 
Board of Trustees effective January 01, 2010: 
 

Participating Entity    Membership Term 
1. City of St. Johns    January 01, 2010 - June 30, 2016 
 
Participating Entity - Rural Arizona Group Health Trust as authorized and approved by the RAGHT 



 
 25 

Board of Trustees effective July 01, 2010: 
 

Participating Entity    Membership Term 
1. City of Williams    July 01, 2010 - June 30, 2016 
2. Carpe Diem Collegiate High School  July 01, 2010 - June 30, 2016 
3. Desert View Academy   July 01, 2010 - June 30, 2016 
 
Participating Entity - Rural Arizona Group Health Trust as authorized and approved by the RAGHT 
Board of Trustees effective March 01, 2011: 
 

Participating Entity    Membership Term 
1. Town of Taylor    March 01, 2014 - June 30, 2017 
 
Participating Entity - Rural Arizona Group Health Trust as authorized and approved by the RAGHT 
Board of Trustees effective July 01, 2011: 
 

Participating Entity    Membership Term 
1. Summit Fire District    July 01, 2011 - June 30, 2017 

 
Participating Entity - Rural Arizona Group Health Trust as authorized and approved by the RAGHT 
Board of Trustees effective January 01, 2012: 
 

Participating Entity    Membership Term 
1. Town of Snowflake    January 01, 2012 - June 30, 2018 
 
Participating Entity - Rural Arizona Group Health Trust as authorized and approved by the RAGHT 
Board of Trustees effective January 01, 2014: 
 

Participating Entity    Membership Term 
1. City of Tombstone    January 01, 2014 - June 30, 2017 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-R004 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE 
APPROVING THE AMENDMENTS TO THE RURAL ARIZONA  

GROUP HEALTH TRUST AGREEMENT AND DECLARATION OF TRUST 
DATED JULY 01, 2012 

 
WHEREAS, Section 11-952.01(C) of the Arizona Revised Statutes authorizes two 
or more public agencies to enter into agreements for the provision of employee 
health benefit programs; and  
 
WHEREAS, On July 1, 2002, certain Arizona public entities entered into an 
Agreement and Declaration of Trust (the “Trust Agreement”) establishing the Rural 
Arizona Group Health Trust (the “RAGHT”) for the purpose of providing health 
benefits to employees of the Participating Entities; and  
 
WHEREAS, Town of Springerville has been a Participating Entity in RAGHT since 
July 01, 2009; and 
 
WHEREAS, the RAGHT Board of Trustees at its meeting on February 23, 2024 
approved an amendment to the Trust Agreement as set forth in the attached 
Exhibit “A” with an effective date of July 1, 2024; 
 
WHEREAS, The Trust Agreement amendment provision also require 2/3rds of the 
RAGHT Participating Entities’ governing boards approval of the amendment for it 
to be effective; 
 
WHEREAS, the RAGHT Trustees have signed their approval of the amendment 
and directed presentation of the amendment to the governing boards of the 
Participating Entities of RAGHT for consideration and approval; and  
 
WHEREAS,  the  Town Council of Town of Springerville has determined that it is 
in its and its employees  best interests  to approve the amendment.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS 
 
The Town Council of Town of Springerville hereby approves and adopts the 
proposed amendment to the RAGHT Agreement and Declaration of Trust with an 
effective date of July 1, 2024 which is set forth in the attached Exhibit “A”. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this ______ day of _______________, 2024.  
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Shelly Reidhead, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 



______________________________ 
Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk  
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________________ 
Mangum Wall Stoops & Warden PLLC 
Town Attorney 
 



Page 1 of 4 
Master_IGA_07/11/2024 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT REGARDING 
NORTHEASTERN ARIZONA LAW ENFORCEMENT TRAINING ACADEMY 

(NALETA) 

This Intergovernmental Agreement (“Agreement”) is made pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes 
(“A.R.S.”) § 11-952 among Navajo County Community College District (“District”) and the 
Round Valley Police Department Arizona, an Arizona municipal corporation. 
1. Purpose.  The purpose of this Agreement is to provide Northeastern Arizona with a
Police Academy hereby called NALETA (“Northeastern Arizona Law Enforcement Training
Academy”) that can provide certified AZPOST (Arizona Peace Officer Standards and Training)
training to students who meet AZPOST qualifications and are sponsored by a Law Enforcement
agency.
2. Duties and Responsibilities of District.  District shall operate and administer NALETA.
District’s operational and administrative responsibilities shall include, but not be limited to, (a)
developing and providing the AZPOST curriculum to be used at NALETA; (b) scheduling
courses at the NALETA, registering students at NALETA and administering transcripts for
students at NALETA; (c) assisting instructors at NALETA; and (d) obtaining adequate insurance
to cover liabilities that might result from damage to persons or property arising out of the
operation of NALETA.
3. Duties and Responsibilities of Cities, Towns, Tribes and Counties.  Law Enforcement
agencies participating in NALETA shall provide qualified instructors for all classes given at
NALETA.  Any compensation to instructors shall be the responsibility of the city, town, tribe or
county that employs the instructor, and the other parties to this Agreement shall have no
responsibility to provide such compensation.  District shall have no responsibility to conduct
classes for which the participating cities and towns do not provide qualified instructors with all
necessary certification.
4. Manner of Financing the Agreement.  Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement,
each party shall be responsible for whatever costs that party incurs in connection with this
Agreement.  The District shall charge the Student enrolled in the Districts AJS102 “Intensive
Police Academy” class held at NALETA a nonrefundable program and media fee based on the
current class fee schedule. Any fees that are charged shall belong to District.  Any reimbursement
received from AZPOST for the successful completion of NALETA shall belong to the District
5. Enrollment of Students.  The participating cities, towns, tribes and counties shall be
entitled to enroll employees in NALETA to the extent that the employees are qualified for
enrollment as set forth by AZPOST Rules and Procedures Manual as set under the State of
Arizona Rules of Authority A.R.S. §§ 41-1821 through 41-1828.01 and Arizona Administrative
Code, Title 13-4-101 through 13-4-118 and that NALETA has the capacity to train those
employees.  District shall not be required to accept any employee for enrollment unless the city,
town, tribe or county responsible for that employee has conducted a sufficient background check
on the employee at its own expense as set forth by AZPOST regulations.
6. Term and termination.  This Agreement shall expire on July 31, 2027.  Any party may
terminate the Agreement as of the end of any fiscal year by providing at least thirty (30) days’



Page 2 of 4 
Master_IGA_07/11/2024 

prior written notice of its intention to do so to the other parties.  Such early termination shall be 
effective only at the end of the fiscal year in which such notice is given.  Upon termination of 
this Agreement, each party shall retain its own property. 

7. Immigration compliance.  As required by A.R.S. § 41-4401, each party certifies that it
and all of its subcontractors, if any, are in compliance with federal immigration laws and
regulations that relate to their employees and with A.R.S. § 23-214(A).  A breach of this
warranty shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement and shall be subject to penalties
up to and including termination of this Agreement.  Each party shall have the right to inspect the
papers of the other party and of any subcontractors to ensure that this warranty is being complied
with.

8. Conflicts of interest.  As required by A.R.S. § 38-511, each party gives notice as follows
that it may, within three years after its execution, cancel this Agreement, without penalty or
further obligation, if any person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing,
drafting or creating the Agreement on behalf of the party is, at any time while the Agreement or
any extension of the Agreement is in effect, an employee or agent of any other party to the
Agreement in any capacity or a consultant to any other party of the Agreement with respect to
the subject matter of the Agreement.

9. Entire Agreement; Amendments.  This Agreement represents the entire Agreement of
the Parties with respect to its subject matter.  This Agreement shall not be changed, modified, or
rescinded, except through a writing signed by all parties.
10. Governing Law, Forum.  This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of
Arizona, both as to interpretation and performance.  Any judicial proceeding for the enforcement
of this Agreement or any provision thereof shall be instituted only the courts of Navajo County,
State of Arizona, provided that nothing herein shall be deemed a waiver of either explicit nor
implicit of the parties’ sovereign immunity from suit.

11. Insurance.  The participants will ensure that all parties will protect the other participants
by providing insurance coverage in an amount no less than $1,000,000 and naming each participant
as an individual insured with the proper endorsements.

12. Indemnification.  To the extent permitted by law, each party agrees (as indemnitor) to
indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other party (as indemnitee) from and against any and all
claims, losses, liability, costs, or expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees) (collectively
(“Claims”) arising out of bodily injury of any person (including death) or property damage, but
only to the extent that such claims are caused by the act, omission or negligence, misconduct, or
other fault of the indemnitor, its officers, officials, agents, employees or volunteers.  If a Claim or
Claims by third parties become subject to this indemnity provision, the parties to this Agreement
that are the subject of such Claim or Claims shall expeditiously meet to discuss a common and
mutual defense, including possible proportional liability and proportional payment of possible
litigation expenses and money damages.  The obligations under this Section shall survive
termination of this Agreement.



Page 3 of 4 
Master_IGA_07/11/2024 

13. No Joint Venture.  This Agreement is not intended to constitute, create, give rise to, or
otherwise recognize a joint venture agreement, partnership or other formal business association or
organization of any kind, and the rights and obligations of the Parties shall be only those expressly
set forth in this Agreement.

14. Workman’s Compensation.   For purposes of workers’ compensation, an employee of a
Party to this Agreement, who works under the jurisdiction or control of, or who works within the
jurisdictional boundaries of another Party pursuant to this specific Agreement, is deemed to be
an employee of both the Party who is his primary employer and the Party under whose
jurisdiction or control or within whose jurisdictional boundaries he is then working, as provided
in A.R.S. § 23-1022(D).  The primary employer Party of such employee shall be solely liable for
payment of workers’ compensation benefits for the purposes of this section.  Each Party herein
shall comply with the provisions of A.R.S. § 23-1022(E) by posting the public notice required.

Entity Name______________________ 

By:  __________________________________ 
Authorized Signee 

Print Name: _________________________________ 

ATTEST: _________________________________________ 

Board Clerk 

Date:  ____________________________________________ 

NAVAJO COUNTY COMMUNITY 
COLLEGE DISTRICT 

By: _____________________________________ 

Print Name:  _________________________________________ 

Date:  _________________________ 



Page 4 of 4 
Master_IGA_07/11/2024 

ATTEST:_________________________________________ 

Board Clerk 

Date:  ____________________________________________ 

ATTORNEY CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned certify that they have reviewed the foregoing Agreement and that said 
Agreement is in proper form and is within the powers and authority granted to the public body 
represented by the respective attorneys. 

__________________________________ 

Attorney for  

__________________________________ 

Kristin M. Mackin 

Attorney for Navajo County Community College District 



TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC 

HEARING
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, pursuant to Arizona Revised 
Statutes Section 9-462.04(A)(1) that the Springerville Town 
Council will hold a public hearing on the following matter:

-APPEAL to deny the Conditional Use Permit for 64 North 
D Street (Parcel #105-42-046A), that the Planning and 
Zoning Commission approved on June 11, 2024, allowing 
the property to be utilized as a mobile home park, under 
the Town’s current MHP, Mobile/Manufactured Home 
Parks zoning regulations. 

PUBLIC HEARING on this topic will be held on July 
17, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at 418 
E. Main Street.  The public is encouraged to attend the 
hearing and express their opinions.



Fiscal 
year General Fund

Special Revenue 
Fund Debt Service Fund

Capital Projects 
Fund Permanent Fund

Enterprise 
Funds Available

Internal Service 
Funds Total all funds

2024 Adopted/adjusted budgeted expenditures/expenses*   E 1 5,203,473 10,314,806 25,000 0 0 3,371,288 0 18,914,567

2024 Actual expenditures/expenses**   E 2 3,782,440 1,158,374 25,000 0 0 1,291,686 0 6,257,500

2025
Beginning fund balance/(deficit) or net position/(deficit) 
at July 1*** 3 6,226,766 1,115,843 0 0 0 1,199,465 0 8,542,074

2025 Primary property tax levy B 4 0 0

2025 Secondary property tax levy B 5 0

2025 Estimated revenues other than property taxes  C 6 5,259,866 8,003,271 0 0 0 2,547,699 0 15,810,836

2025 Other financing sources  D 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Other financing (uses)   D 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Interfund transfers in   D 9 0 42,400 26,000 0 0 0 0 68,400

2025 Interfund Transfers (out)   D 10 68,400 0 0 0 0 0 0 68,400

2025
Line 11: Reduction for fund balance reserved for future 
budget year expenditures

     Maintained for future debt retirement 0

     Maintained for future capital projects 0

     Maintained for future financial stability 0

     Maintained for future retirement contributions 0

0

2025 Total financial resources available 12 11,418,232 9,161,514 26,000 0 0 3,747,164 0 24,352,910

2025 Budgeted expenditures/expenses E 13 11,419,232 9,161,514 25,000 0 0 3,747,164 0 24,352,910

Expenditure limitation comparison 2024 2025
1 Budgeted expenditures/expenses 18,914,567$      24,352,910$      
2 Add/subtract: estimated net reconciling items
3 Budgeted expenditures/expenses adjusted for reconciling items 18,914,567        24,352,910        
4 Less: estimated exclusions 6,480,000          12,161,514        
5 Amount subject to the expenditure limitation 12,434,567$      12,191,396$      
6 EEC expenditure limitation or voter-approved alternative expenditure limitation 13,327,885$      13,870,953$      

*
**
***

PUBLIC NOTICE / NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
Town of SpringervilleSummary Schedule of Estimated Revenues and Expenditures/ Expenses Fiscal Year 2024/2025

On June 19, 2024, the Springerville Town Council adopted the Tentative Budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025. The Town Council will meet and hold a public hearing July 17, 2024, at or after 6:00 p.m. at the
Springerville Council Chambers located at 418 E Main St., Springerville, AZ 85938, to hear and take action on the final budget for FY24/25. The public is encouraged to attend this public hearing on the budget and express their

opinions.

City/Town of Springerville
Summary Schedule of estimated revenues and expenditures/expenses

Fiscal year 2025

Includes actual amounts as of the date the proposed budget was prepared, adjusted for estimated activity for the remainder of the fiscal year.
Amounts on this line represent beginning fund balance/(deficit) or net position/(deficit) amounts except for nonspendable amounts (e.g., prepaids and inventories) or amounts legally or contractually required to be 
maintained intact (e.g., principal of a permanent fund). See the Instructions tab, cell C17 for more information about the amounts that should and should not be included on this line.

S
c
h

Funds

Includes expenditure/expense adjustments approved in the current year from Schedule E.       

The city/town does not levy property taxes and does not have special assessment districts for which property taxes are levied.  Therefore, Schedule B has been omitted.

11

6/23 Arizona Auditor General Schedule A Official City/Town Budget Forms

Town of SpringervilleSummary Schedule of Estimated Revenues and
Expenditures/ Expenses Fiscal Year 2024/2025

On June 19, 2024, the Springerville Town Council adopted the Tentative Budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025. The Town Council will meet and hold 
a public hearing July 17, 2024, at or after 6:00 p.m. at the Springerville Council Chambers located at 418 E Main St., Springerville, AZ 85938, to hear and take 

action on the final budget for FY24/25. The public is encouraged to attend this public hearing on the budget and express their opinions.

City/Town of Springerville
Summary Schedule of estimated revenues and expenditures/expenses

Fiscal year 2025

PUBLIC NOTICE / NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING



































































Fiscal 
year General Fund

Special Revenue 
Fund Debt Service Fund

Capital Projects 
Fund Permanent Fund

Enterprise 
Funds Available

Internal Service 
Funds Total all funds

2024 Adopted/adjusted budgeted expenditures/expenses*   E 1 5,203,473 10,314,806 25,000 0 0 3,371,288 0 18,914,567

2024 Actual expenditures/expenses**   E 2 3,782,440 1,158,374 25,000 0 0 1,291,686 0 6,257,500

2025
Beginning fund balance/(deficit) or net position/(deficit) at 
July 1*** 3 6,226,766 1,115,843 0 0 0 1,199,465 0 8,542,074

2025 Primary property tax levy B 4 0 0

2025 Secondary property tax levy B 5 0

2025 Estimated revenues other than property taxes  C 6 5,259,866 8,003,271 0 0 0 2,547,699 0 15,810,836

2025 Other financing sources  D 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Other financing (uses)   D 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2025 Interfund transfers in   D 9 0 42,400 26,000 0 0 0 0 68,400

2025 Interfund Transfers (out)   D 10 68,400 0 0 0 0 0 0 68,400

2025
Line 11: Reduction for fund balance reserved for future 
budget year expenditures

     Maintained for future debt retirement 0

     Maintained for future capital projects 0

     Maintained for future financial stability 0

     Maintained for future retirement contributions 0

0

2025 Total financial resources available 12 11,418,232 9,161,514 26,000 0 0 3,747,164 0 24,352,910

2025 Budgeted expenditures/expenses E 13 11,419,232 9,161,514 25,000 0 0 3,747,164 0 24,352,910

Expenditure limitation comparison 2024 2025
1 Budgeted expenditures/expenses 18,914,567$       24,352,910$       
2 Add/subtract: estimated net reconciling items
3 Budgeted expenditures/expenses adjusted for reconciling items 18,914,567         24,352,910         
4 Less: estimated exclusions 6,480,000           12,161,514         
5 Amount subject to the expenditure limitation 12,434,567$       12,191,396$       
6 EEC expenditure limitation or voter-approved alternative expenditure limitation 13,327,885$       13,870,953$       

*
**
***

City/Town of Springerville
Summary Schedule of estimated revenues and expenditures/expenses

Fiscal year 2025

Includes actual amounts as of the date the proposed budget was prepared, adjusted for estimated activity for the remainder of the fiscal year.
Amounts on this line represent beginning fund balance/(deficit) or net position/(deficit) amounts except for nonspendable amounts (e.g., prepaids and inventories) or amounts legally or contractually required to be 
maintained intact (e.g., principal of a permanent fund). See the Instructions tab, cell C17 for more information about the amounts that should and should not be included on this line.

S
c
h

Funds

Includes expenditure/expense adjustments approved in the current year from Schedule E.       

The city/town does not levy property taxes and does not have special assessment districts for which property taxes are levied.  Therefore, Schedule B has been omitted.

11

6/23 Arizona Auditor General Schedule A Official City/Town Budget Forms



2024 2025
1.

$ $

2.

$

3. Property tax levy amounts
A.  Primary property taxes $ $

B. Secondary property taxes

C. Total property tax levy amounts $ $

4. Property taxes collected*
A. Primary property taxes

(1)  Current year's levy $
(2)  Prior years’ levies
(3)  Total primary property taxes $

B. Secondary property taxes
(1)  Current year's levy $
(2)  Prior years’ levies
(3)  Total secondary property taxes $

C. Total property taxes collected $

5. Property tax rates
A.  City/Town tax rate

(1)  Primary property tax rate

(2)  Secondary property tax rate

(3)  Total city/town tax rate
B.  Special assessment district tax rates

Secondary property tax rates—As of the date the proposed budget was prepared, the
special assessment districts for which secondary

property taxes are levied. For information pertaining to these special assessment districts
and their tax rates, please contact the city/town.

*

city/town was operating

Includes actual property taxes collected as of the date the proposed budget was prepared, plus 
estimated property tax collections for the remainder of the fiscal year.

Amount received from primary property taxation in 
the current year in excess of the sum of that year's 
maximum allowable primary property tax levy. 
A.R.S. §42-17102(A)(18)

City/Town of Springerville
Tax levy and tax rate information

Fiscal year 2025

Maximum allowable primary property tax levy. 
A.R.S. §42-17051(A)

    Property tax judgment

    Property tax judgment

Property tax judgment

Property tax judgment

 6/23 Arizona Auditor General Schedule B Official City/Town Budget Forms



Estimated 
revenues Actual revenues*

Estimated 
revenues

2024 2024 2025

General Fund

Local taxes
City Sales Tax $ 2,500,000 $ 2,685,000 $ 2,650,000

Licenses and permits
Building Permits 17,500 7,723 10,000
Conditional Use Permits 1,000 307 500
Business Licenses 3,200 3,720 3,500
Application & Filling Fees 3,000 1,218 1,500
Other Licenses & Permits 2,250 2,876 2,000

Intergovernmental
State Sales Tax 243,000 245,779 253,650
Urban Revenue 360,173 457,905 371,107
VLT 165,000 160,892 163,530
Town of Eagar Police/Animal Control 1,137,508 733,373 1,247,747

Charges for services
Cemetery Fees 5,000 6,200 5,500

Fines and forfeits
Magistrate Court 23,000 28,694 30,000

Interest on investments
LGIP 130,000 225,715 240,000

In-lieu property taxes

Contributions

Miscellaneous
Public Safety 9,750 6,000 9,500
Misc 17,000 1,134 8,000
White Mountain Apache 3,400 3,400 3,400
Heritage Museum/Cas Tours 12,950 7,719 9,000
Smart & Safe Arizona 5,000 12,222 15,000
Lease Agreements 18,680 16,614 17,000
AMRRP Dividend Reimbursement 45,276 45,276 78,932
Sale of Assets 140,000

Total General Fund $ 4,702,687 $ 4,651,767 $ 5,259,866

 *

City/Town of Springerville
Revenues other than property taxes

Fiscal Year 2025

Includes actual revenues recognized on the modified accrual or accrual basis as of the date the proposed budget was 
prepared, plus estimated revenues for the remainder of the fiscal year.

Source of revenues

 6/23 Arizona Auditor General Schedule C Official City/Town Budget Forms



Estimated 
revenues Actual revenues*

Estimated 
revenues

2024 2024 2025

City/Town of Springerville
Revenues other than property taxes

Fiscal Year 2025

Source of revenues

Special revenue funds

HURF $ 497,515 $ 468,681 $ 483,614
Misc 1,500 180 1,500
Community Services Center 540,347 378,746 531,733
Airport 382,083 246,756 305,810
Tourism 20,000 18,466 20,000

$ 1,441,445 $ 1,112,829 $ 1,342,657

General Government Grants $ 3,220,266 $ 12,500 $ 2,177,273
Public Safety Grants 1,055,000 329 1,569,733
Public Works Grants 1,750,000 1,813,608
Transportation Grants 1,385,000 500,000
Culture & Recreation Grants 600,000

$ 7,410,266 $ 12,829 $ 6,660,614

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

Total special revenue funds $ 8,851,711 $ 1,125,658 $ 8,003,271

 * Includes actual revenues recognized on the modified accrual or accrual basis as of the date the proposed budget was 
prepared, plus estimated revenues for the remainder of the fiscal year.

 6/23 Arizona Auditor General Schedule C Official City/Town Budget Forms



Estimated 
revenues Actual revenues*

Estimated 
revenues

2024 2024 2025

City/Town of Springerville
Revenues other than property taxes

Fiscal Year 2025

Source of revenues

Debt service funds

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

Total debt service funds $ $ $

Capital projects funds

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

Total capital projects funds $ $ $

 * Includes actual revenues recognized on the modified accrual or accrual basis as of the date the proposed budget was 
prepared, plus estimated revenues for the remainder of the fiscal year.

 6/23 Arizona Auditor General Schedule C Official City/Town Budget Forms



Estimated 
revenues Actual revenues*

Estimated 
revenues

2024 2024 2025

City/Town of Springerville
Revenues other than property taxes

Fiscal Year 2025

Source of revenues

Permanent funds

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

Total permanent funds $ $ $

Enterprise funds

Water Fees $ 495,000 $ 650,460 $ 635,000
WIFA 1,150,000 38,400 1,062,025
Misc 1,000 942 1,500
Water Connection Fees 6,500 4,268 6,000
Bulk Water Fees 1,600 2,034 2,000

$ 1,654,100 $ 696,104 $ 1,706,525

Wastewater Fees $ 465,000 $ 509,812 $ 519,000
WIFA 475,000 12,088 306,674
Misc 3,000 1,500
Wastewater Connection Fees 12,000 12,255 14,000

$ 955,000 $ 534,155 $ 841,174

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

Total enterprise funds $ 2,609,100 $ 1,230,259 $ 2,547,699

 * Includes actual revenues recognized on the modified accrual or accrual basis as of the date the proposed budget was 
prepared, plus estimated revenues for the remainder of the fiscal year.

 6/23 Arizona Auditor General Schedule C Official City/Town Budget Forms



Estimated 
revenues Actual revenues*

Estimated 
revenues

2024 2024 2025

City/Town of Springerville
Revenues other than property taxes

Fiscal Year 2025

Source of revenues

Internal service funds

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

Total internal service funds $ $ $

Total all funds $ 16,163,498 $ 7,007,684 $ 15,810,836

 * Includes actual revenues recognized on the modified accrual or accrual basis as of the date the proposed budget was 
prepared, plus estimated revenues for the remainder of the fiscal year.

 6/23 Arizona Auditor General Schedule C Official City/Town Budget Forms



Fund Sources (Uses) In (Out)
General Fund
General Government $ $ $ $ 68,400

Total General Fund $ $ $ $ 68,400
Special revenue funds
Community Services $ $ $ 35,000 $
CS Town of Springerville Transportation 7,400

Total special revenue funds $ $ $ 42,400 $
Debt service funds
MPC $ $ $ 26,000 $

Total debt service funds $ $ $ 26,000 $
Capital projects funds

$ $ $ $

Total capital projects funds $ $ $ $
Permanent funds

$ $ $ $

Total permanent funds $ $ $ $
Enterprise funds

$ $ $ $

Total enterprise funds $ $ $ $
Internal service funds

$ $ $ $

Total Internal Service Funds $ $ $ $

Total all funds $ $ $ 68,400 $ 68,400

2025 2025

City/Town of Springerville
Other financing sources/(uses) and interfund transfers

Fiscal year 2025
Other financing Interfund transfers

6/23 Arizona Auditor General Schedule D Official City/Town Budget Forms



Adopted
budgeted 

expenditures/
expenses

Expenditure/
expense 

adjustments 
approved 

Actual 
expenditures/

expenses*

Budgeted 
expenditures/

expenses 
Fund/Department 2024 2024 2024 2025

General Fund
General Government $ 1,142,400 $ $ 867,726 $ 2,136,993
Mayor & Council 54,749 48,075 73,305
Legal 415,000 237,697 5,576,500
Magistrate 45,750 23,276 15,000
Administration 312,694 283,716 352,937
Finance 231,059 195,048 239,540
Planning & Zoning 150,288 88,945 148,588
Police 2,291,292 1,568,558 2,242,594
Animal Control 96,224 85,605 165,920
Building Maint 163,994 142,779 153,882
Heritage/Casa 167,521 130,512 160,946
Mechanic Shop 34,779 32,067 36,558
Parks & Cemetery 97,723 78,436 116,469

Total General Fund $ 5,203,473 $ $ 3,782,440 $ 11,419,232
Special revenue funds

HURF $ 1,172,997 $ $ 394,588 $ 1,488,306
Community Services Center 518,889 356,829 463,613
Airport 534,405 380,235 463,981
General Government Grants 3,812,382 12,500 2,177,273
Public Safety Grants 1,055,000 329 1,569,733
Transportation Grants 1,385,000 500,000
Culture & Recreation Grants 600,000
Public Works Grants 1,750,000 1,813,608
Tourism 85,000 13,893 85,000
Donations 1,133

Total special revenue funds $ 10,314,806 $ $ 1,158,374 $ 9,161,514
Debt service funds

MPC $ 25,000 $ $ 25,000 $ 25,000

Total debt service funds $ 25,000 $ $ 25,000 $ 25,000
Capital projects funds

Contingency $ $ $ $

Total capital projects funds $ $ $ $
Permanent funds

Contingency $ $ $ $

Total permanent funds $ $ $ $
Enterprise funds

Water $ 2,034,971 $ $ 774,245 $ 2,463,315
Water Contingency 30,000 30,000

Wastewater 1,276,317 517,441 1,223,849
Wastewater Contingency 30,000 30,000

Total enterprise funds $ 3,371,288 $ $ 1,291,686 $ 3,747,164
Internal service funds

Contingency $ $ $ $

Total internal service funds $ $ $ $
Total all funds $ 18,914,567 $ $ 6,257,500 $ 24,352,910

*

Expenditures/expenses by fund
Fiscal year 2025

City/Town of Springerville

Includes actual expenditures/expenses recognized on the modified accrual or accrual basis as of the date the proposed budget 
was prepared, plus estimated expenditures/expenses for the remainder of the fiscal year.

6/23 Arizona Auditor General Schedule E Official City/Town Budget Forms



Adopted
budgeted 

expenditures/
expenses

Expenditure/
expense 

adjustments 
approved 

Actual 
expenditures/

expenses*

Budgeted 
expenditures/

expenses 
2024 2024 2024 2025

City clerk:
   General Fund $ $ $ $
   List other funds

Department total $ $ $ $

List department:

   General Fund $ $ $ $
   List other funds

Department total $ $ $ $

List department:

   General Fund $ $ $ $
   List other funds

Department total $ $ $ $
 

*

Expenditures/expenses by department
Fiscal year 2025

City/Town of Springerville

Includes actual expenditures/expenses recognized on the modified accrual or accrual basis as of the date the 
proposed budget was prepared, plus estimated expenditures/expenses for the remainder of the fiscal year.

Department/Fund

6/23 Arizona Auditor General Schedule F Official City/Town Budget Forms



Full-time 
equivalent (FTE)

Employee salaries 
and hourly costs Retirement costs Healthcare costs

Other benefit 
costs

Total estimated 
personnel 

compensation
2025 2025 2025 2025 2025 2025

$ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

Total special revenue funds $ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

Total debt service funds $ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

Total capital projects funds $ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

Total permanent funds $ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

Total enterprise funds $ $ $ $ $

$ $ $ $ $

Total internal service fund $ $ $ $ $

Total all funds $ $ $ $ $

Fund

City/Town of Springerville
Full-time employees and personnel compensation

Fiscal year 2025

General Fund

Internal service funds

Special revenue funds

Debt service funds

Capital projects funds

Permanent funds

Enterprise funds

6/23 Arizona Auditor General Schedule G Official City/Towns Budget Forms



TO:   Springerville Town Council 
FROM:    Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk  
DATE:    07/17/2024 
SUBJECT: Tourism Tax Fund Request 

 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
I motion to approve the Tourism Tax Fund request for the Artists & Authors expo 
event in the amount of $750. 
 
OR I motion to approve the Tourism Tax Fund request for the Artists & Authors 
expo event in the amount of __________. 
 
OR I motion to not approve.  
 
OR I motion to table this item.  
 
 STAFF REPORT 
 

Council, 
 
The Tourism Tax committee met regarding this application and has made the 
recommendation to approve funds in the amount of $750.00 on June 26, 
2024. The event will be held on August 29-August31, 2024.  

TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE 

MEMORANDUM  







TO:   Springerville Town Council 
FROM:    Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk  
DATE:    07/17/2024 
SUBJECT: Pest Control Services 

 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
I motion to approve Killum Pest Control for Springerville pesticide services and 
authorize the Town Manager to execute the Contract.  
 
OR I motion to approve Elevate Pest Control for Springerville pesticide services 
and authorize the Town Manager to execute the Contract.  
 
OR I motion to not approve and go back out for bid.  
 
OR I motion to table this item.  
 
 STAFF REPORT 
 

Council, 
 
In June the Town advertised a request for bid for pesticide services. The 
sealed bid opening was July 9, 2024. It is staffs recommendation to sign a 
contract with Killum Pest Control as the lowest responsive bidder.  
 
Bids are attached.   

TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE 

MEMORANDUM  





























TO:   Springerville Town Council 
FROM:   Kelsi Miller, Town Clerk  
DATE:    07/17/2024 
SUBJECT: August Meeting

 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS:  

 

I move we change the August meeting date to _____________.   

 

 

OR take no action and the meeting date will stay the same.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 STAFF REPORT:  

Due to a meeting in Phoenix I will not be in Town August 21st for the 

Regular Council meeting. I can either call in to the meeting or if you would 

rather we change the date, we will need a motion.  

 

TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE 

MEMORANDUM  


	TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
	TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE
	SUBJECT: Consent Items

	TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
	TOWN COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING
	II. statement EXPLAINING the purpose and effect of the AMENDMENT
	A. Purpose of the Amendment.  The purpose of the proposed Amendments is to address the fact that the Trust does not have a Principal Office and that the best way to obtain documents is to contact the Trust Administrator, currently Gallagher Benefit Se...
	B. Effect of the Amendment. The effect of the Amendment will be to delete the reference to a Principal Office, which does not exist, but to still inform where the documents for the Trust may be obtained.

	2012 July Trust Document - FINAL Clean.pdf
	1. City of Holbrook    July 01, 2002 - June 30, 2019
	2. City of Winslow    July 01, 2002 - June 30, 2017
	3. Town of Parker    July 01, 2002 - June 30, 2016
	1. Kingman Academy of Learning  July 01, 2003 - June 30, 2019
	2. City of Safford    July 01, 2003 – June 30, 2018

	Schedule A
	Schedule B
	Schedule C
	Schedule D
	Schedule E
	Schedule F
	Schedule G
	TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE
	SUBJECT: Tourism Tax Fund Request

	TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE
	SUBJECT: Pest Control Services

	TOWN OF SPRINGERVILLE
	SUBJECT: August Meeting


